
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

February 2, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Pastor Ron Lawler of Family Bible Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Bob Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Oath of Police Officer for Michael Brown

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive

February 2, 2016 6:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER
Invocation - Led by Pastor Ron Lawler of Family Bible Church
Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Bob Severns
Excuse Absent Councilmembers

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS
a. Proclamations

b. Honors & Recognitions
i. Oath of Police Officer for Michael Brown
ii. Employee Service Recognition - Arnold Peterschmidt - 10 Years of Service

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on January 19, 2016, and Workshop on January 20, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Resolution No. 16-06: Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO)
d. Department of Corrections Jail Contract for Services K9413(3)

ii. Employee Service Recognition - Arnold Peterschmidt - 10 Years of Service

c. Community Presentations

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD
Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent 
Agenda. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. 
Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA
Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with 
one motion unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the
Mayor to implement each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items
a. Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on January 19, 2016, and Workshop on January 20, 2016
b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
c. Resolution No. 16-06: Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO)
d. Department of Corrections Jail Contract for Services K9413(3)

1



5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
ii. 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by Race Director - Elks Lodge

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for 

SCADA Services

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. None

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS
a. City Administrator

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
ii. 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by Race Director - Elks Lodge

b. Mayor
c. Councilmembers

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS
To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the 
Council Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the 
microphone. Please limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to 
speak.

a. None

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS
a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS
a. Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for 

SCADA Services

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION
a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Nonea. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

a. None

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
a. None

ADJOURN

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City 
services. Where possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, 
and any other applicable laws. Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the 
scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk at (360) 279-4539. 

2



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Oath of Police Officer for 
Michael Brown

FROM: Ed Green, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Police Chief Green will swear in Academy Graduate Michael Brown.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.b.i
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Oath of Police Officer for 
Michael Brown

FROM: Ed Green, Chief of Police

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Police Chief Green will swear in Academy Graduate Michael Brown.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Employee Service Recognition -
Arnold Peterschmidt - 10 Years 
of Service

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Recognize Arnold Peterschmidt for 10 Years of Service.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.b.ii
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Employee Service Recognition -
Arnold Peterschmidt - 10 Years 
of Service

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Recognize Arnold Peterschmidt for 10 Years of Service.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

4



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
held on January 19, 2016, and 
Workshop on January 20, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Meeting 
held on January 19, 2016, and 
Workshop on January 20, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUTPREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 1/19/2016 Minutes
2. 1/20/2016 Minutes

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 1/19/2016 Minutes
2. 1/20/2016 Minutes

5

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453917230_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453917243_at.pdf


Regular Meeting Minutes – January 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

January 19, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 

Chief of Police Ed Green 
Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
City Clerk Anna Thompson 

CALL TO ORDER 

Councilmember Jim Campbell provided the invocation, and then Mayor Severns led the led the 
pledge of allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 
  seconded by Councilmember Servatius, and the motion was unanimously approved. 

PRESENTATIONS 

Community Presentations 

Safety Improvements Announcement from Washington State Department of Transportation re-
garding Sharpes Corner Vicinity – presented by Washington State Department of Transporta-
tion.  An open house will be held at Anacortes Middle School from 5:30 -7:30 p.m. on January 
21, 2016, to illicit community input on the project. 

Executive Director Christine Cribb presented the Chamber of Commerce Annual Report for City 
Council.  

Mayor Severns thanked Christine for the Chamber’s hard work. 

6



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

 
Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:18 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 
 Terica Ginther, 1771 SW 16th Avenue, Oak Harbor, WA  
 Brett Ginther, 1771 SW 16th Avenue, Oak Harbor, WA  
 Kristie Hickok, 730 SE 8th Avenue, Oak Harbor, WA  
 Austin Taylor, 1771 SW 16th Avenue, Oak Harbor, WA  

Ed Wilkins, 1870 SW Union Street, Oak Harbor, WA 
 Rick Chapman, 1618 SE 8th Avenue, Oak Harbor, WA  
 Hal Hovey, 651 SE Bayshore Drive, Oak Harbor, WA  
 Christine Cribb, Executive Director of the Chamber of Commerce 
 
After all comments were provided, the Citizen Comment period was closed at 6:42 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Approval of Accounts Payable and Check Numbers  
b. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on January 5, 2016 and Special 

Meeting on January 12, 2016 
c. Ordinance 1755:  Amendment OHMC 2.390 regarding Contract Authority  
d. Resolution 16-03: Accepting “Founders” Memorial at Windjammer Park at City Beach  

Street    
e. Resolution 16-04: Amending the Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, 

Oak Harbor Fire Department and Public Works 
f.    Ault Field Booster Pump Station – Contract Close Out 
g.   Purchase Authorization – Copier for Pioneer Way Building  
h.   Purchase Authorization – Veteran’s Park Kiosk 

 
Councilmember Munns pulled Consent Agenda Item 4.e.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Consent Agenda Items a-d and f-h.   

   Motion seconded by Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.       
     

Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to approve Consent Agenda Item 4.e, seconded by  
   Councilmember Servatius, and unanimously approved.  

 
 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
Dr. Merriman announced the Workshop tomorrow on January 20th, 2016 from 3:00 - 5:00 p.m.  
City Council will be in Olympia next week and on January 26, 2016, Council will meet with State 
Representatives in Olympia.  During January 27-28, Council will attend the AWC City Action 
Days. 
 

7



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   
 
Comments from City Council.  
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Bob Severns shared that he lobbied for the Marina this past weekend. He then intro-
duced the new art hanging in Council chambers from the Oak Harbor High School.  Mayor then 
read a letter from the Washington State Department of Public Works  
 
Councilmembers 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao commented on the School District.  
 
Councilmember Campbell commented on the Committees of which he is a part.  
 
Councilmember Munns suggested proclaiming support for our school while at Washington DC 
this year. 
 
Councilmember Almberg spoke on the successful audit from the Washington State Auditor’s 
Exit Conference at Island Transit.  
 
Councilmember Hizon will not be able to attend the Workshop on January 20, 2016. 
 
Councilmember Servatius encouraged discussion among staff regarding development. 
 
Mayor Severns called a five (5) minute recess at 7:18 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 7:23 
p.m. 
 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 
Resolution 16-05:  Island Place Division 2 Final Plat 
Development Director Steve Powers provided the staff report and recommended approval.  
 
Mayor Severns opened the Public Meeting at 7:29 p.m., no public comments were given.  The 
period closed at 7:29 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers discussed, Development Director Steve Powers responded to Councils re-
spective questions.     
 
Resolution 16-05:  Island Place Division 2 Final Plat 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 16-05 as presented, seconded  
    by Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved.  
 
 
 

8



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS  
 

Clean Water Facility- General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #6 
 
Joe Stowell presented the staff report and recommended approval.   
 
Mayor Severns opened the Public Meeting at 7:42 p.m., no public comments were given.  The 
period closed at 7:42 p.m. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to approve Clean Water Facility GMP Amendment  
    #6 authorizing the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133-2009 Exhibit A (GMP #6) in the  
    amount of #3,966,503n plus Sales Tax ($345,086) with Hoffman Construction for Site  
    Preparation C-Micropiles, seconded by Councilmember Hizon, unanimously approved.  
 

REPORTS & ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 

Transportation Element 
 
Dennis Lefevere, Senior Planner introduced Kendra Breiland and shared a PowerPoint presen-
tation.   
 
Interview the Top Two Candidates for the Council Vacancy, Position No. 4 
 
City Administrator, Dr. Merriman presented and introduced the candidates to the Council.   
 
Councilmembers asked the following questions to the Applicants Erica Wasinger and William 
(Skip) Pohtilla.   
 
Mr. Pohtilla was the first candidate to receive questions, each question has a 3 minute time limit.  
 

1. Danny Paggao (Mayor Pro Tem):  What do you perceive as the three most important 
concerns facing Oak Harbor? 

 
2. Joel Servatius (Pos. 5):  Please discuss what elements of your background, or experi-

ence working with civic, community or governmental organizations, would make you an 
effective City Councilmember? 

   
3. Tara Hizon (Pos. 1):  Do you want to serve on the City Council because of a particular 

local issue on which you want to work or are your interests more broadly distributed? 
 

4. Danny Paggao (Pos. 7):  What aspects of Oak Harbor do you think present an oppor-
tunity for redevelopment and revitalization?  What do you think would be appropriate ap-
proach for the City? 
 

5. Beth Munns (Pos. 2):  A typical month for City Council meeting schedules include: 2 
Regular Meetings per month, beginning at 6:00 p.m.; 1 Workshop Meeting beginning at 
3:00 p.m.; and on average 1-2 Special Meetings a month scheduled either in the morn-
ings, afternoons or evenings.  Will you be able to fulfill a majority of these obligations as 
City Councilmember? 

 

9



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 19, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

6. Rick Almberg (Pos. 3):  Two part question: If you are selected for this position will you 
consider running for re-election?  Likewise, if you are not selected, will you consider run-
ning as a candidate for this position at the next opportunity? 

 
7. Jim Campbell (Pos. 6):  All cities are facing fiscal challenges, how would you address 

balancing the budget and consider various alternatives and tradeoffs? 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to extend the meeting to 10:00 p.m., seconded by  

   Councilmember Campbell, unanimously approved.  
  
Mayor Severns called a recess at 8:32 p.m. for approximately 45 (forty-five) minutes to enter 
into Executive Session to discuss Wells Fargo Property Acquisition and Candidates for the Va-
cant Council Position.  No decision will be made on either item during Executive Session. 
 
Mayor Severns reconvened the meeting into Open Session at 9:14 p.m.   
 
Wells Fargo Property Acquisition- No Action was taken  
 
Qualified Applicants for City Council 
 
Motion:  Councilmembers Hizon and Campbell cast their votes: two members voting for William  

   (Skip) Pohtilla and Councilmembers Almberg, Munns, Paggao and Servatius voted for  
   Erica Wasinger as City Councilmember Position No. 4.  

 
   Erica Wasinger was appointed as City Councilmember, Position No. 4. 

 
ADJOURN 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Almberg,       

   unanimously approved.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:18 p.m. 
            

 
Nicole Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

10



Workshop Meeting Minutes – January 20, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Workshop Meeting Minutes 

January 20, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

ROLL CALL 

City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Beth Munns  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Rick Almberg Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Erica Wasinger Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Police Ed Green 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Senior Planner Cac Kamak 

Associate Planner Ray Lindenberg 
Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 

Councilmember Hizon was absent. 

1. Departmental Briefings

a. 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update – Land Use Element
Staff report provided by Development Services Director Steve Powers and Senior Planner Cac 
Kamak. 

Associate Planner Ray Lindenberg assisted during the presentation. 

Questions from Council. 

b. 2016 Legislative Priorities for AWC
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator, reviewed the 2016 Legislative Priorities with Council. 

Comments from Councilmembers. 

2. Pending Agenda Items

a. Interlocal Agreement with Island County for Island Transportation Planning Or-
ganization (ITPO)

Item presented by or Cac Kamak, Senior Planner 

11



Workshop Meeting Minutes – January 20, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

b. Goldie Road Holding Facility Agreement with Freedom Properties
Chief of Police Ed Green provided a brief report on this item. 
Discussion from Council. 

c. PSA for Feasibility Study for Fire Station
Staff report presented by Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 

Questions and from Council. 

d. Countywide Planning Policies
Staff report provided by Steve Powers Director of Development Services 

3. Emerging Issues

a. Clean Water Facility – GMP #7 – Concrete
Joe Stowell, City Engineer, briefed the Council on this emerging issue. 

Questions and discussion from City Council. 

b. Clean Water Facility – Process Control and Integration
Item presented by Joe Stowell, City Engineer 

ADJOURN 

Mayor Severns adjourned the meeting adjourned at 4:51 p.m. 

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

12



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165165 through 165324 in the amount of $445,864.76.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 36933 - 37086.

- EFT check numbers 776 - 780.

- Payroll check numbers 98606 - 98657.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 165165 through 165324 in the amount of $445,864.76.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 36933 - 37086.

- EFT check numbers 776 - 780.

- Payroll check numbers 98606 - 98657.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

13



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)
3. Voucher Listing (3)

14

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453835446_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453835463_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453941029_at.pdf


01/25/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 2:33:08PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165165 1/25/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 23934 DEC 2015/JANITORIAL SERVICES  3,066.58

Total :  3,066.58

 165166 1/25/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36437 DEC 2015/WEB HOSTING  15.95

Total :  15.95

 165167 1/25/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 649359 SUPPLIES  414.88

Total :  414.88

 165168 1/25/2016 0007908  CXTEC 6803629 ETHERNET  1,234.19

 1,074.8148 PORT POE6805711

Total :  2,309.00

 165169 1/25/2016 0006747  EQUINOX RESEARCH & CONSULTING 13-475-12 DEC 2015/PROF SVC WWTP  48,055.55

Total :  48,055.55

 165170 1/25/2016 0000329  GALLS 004596478 REPLACEMENT BATTERY  160.96

Total :  160.96

 165171 1/25/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9927365263 NEEDLE VALVE  128.15

 256.96NEEDLE VALVE9927622986

 92.22MARKING PAINT9927622994

 198.65WELDING BLANKET9928418285

Total :  675.98

 165172 1/25/2016 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 1 TRAVEL REFUND  40.00

 7.15WATER/MARINA238765

 7.15WATER/MARINA238989

 14.30WATER/MARINA239363

Total :  68.60

 165173 1/25/2016 0007306  MASSEY, MEG EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  332.41

Total :  332.41

 165174 1/25/2016 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 122815 DEC 2015/HEARING EXAMINER  1,708.33

Total :  1,708.33

1Page:

15



01/25/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 2:33:08PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165175 1/25/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200002036917 ELECTRICITY/BTWN BAYSHORE DR & BEEKSMA D 150.94

 173.55ELECTRICITY/SW ERIE ST SW BARRINGTON DR200007268135

 13.41ELECTRICITY/SW FAIRWAY POINT DR & SW CAR220002247165

Total :  337.90

 165176 1/25/2016 0007890  SMARSH, INC INV00133325 ARCHIVING PLATFORM  207.00

Total :  207.00

 165177 1/25/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3283723974 SUPPLIES  168.42

 33.14POSTER FRAME3284272188

 39.00MARKER/CABLE/TAPE/PAPER CLIPS3284872506

 22.37SIGN PLATE3287938603

Total :  262.93

 165178 1/25/2016 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009794 BOOTS/BOON  202.85

 138.29BOOTS/NYDAM0009867

Total :  341.14

 165179 1/25/2016 0002984  SUMMA 341871 CORELDRAW GRAPHICS  829.38

Total :  829.38

 165180 1/25/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1082340 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1087425

Total :  90.23

 165181 1/25/2016 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 229597 ACA FORMS  96.95

Total :  96.95

 165182 1/25/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000222970 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  26.00

Total :  26.00

 165183 1/25/2016 0000934  UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION 5120173 DEC 2015/LOCATES  53.90

Total :  53.90

 165184 1/25/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48011 BUSINESS CARDS/ANDERSON  59.79

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/TESCH48231

Total :  119.58

2Page:

16



01/25/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 2:33:08PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165185 1/25/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701926148 NOV 2015/COPIER RENTAL  4,116.52

Total :  4,116.52

Bank total :  63,289.77 21 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 63,289.77Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 21

3Page:

17



01/25/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 3:56:29PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165186 1/25/2016 0008079  PEOPLE'S BANK Ref000230407 UB Refund Cst #00162937  17.59

Total :  17.59

 165187 1/25/2016 0008079  PEOPLE'S BANK Ref000230406 UB Refund Cst #00162939  813.27

Total :  813.27

Bank total :  830.86 2 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 830.86Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 2

1Page:

18



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165157 1/15/2016 0008086  LEAGUE OF WOMEN VOTERS OF 011516 LUNCH MEETING  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165158 1/25/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  191.50

Total :  191.50

 165159 1/25/2016 0005085  SEVERNS, ROBERT TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  122.50

Total :  122.50

 165160 1/25/2016 0003675  CAMPBELL, JAMES TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  122.50

Total :  122.50

 165161 1/25/2016 0000696  PAGGAO, DANNY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  122.50

Total :  122.50

 165162 1/25/2016 0008087  WASINGER, ERICA TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  106.50

Total :  106.50

 165163 1/25/2016 0007029  SERVATIUS, JOEL TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  122.50

Total :  122.50

 165164 1/25/2016 0007450  MAZZOLI, KELLYE TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  122.50

Total :  122.50

 165189 1/26/2016 0000960  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 010816 DEC 2015 SALES/USE TAX  43,967.26

Total :  43,967.26

 165190 1/27/2016 0008018  2% JOINT ADVISORY BOARD 011416 REIMBURSEMENT  15,111.95

Total :  15,111.95

 165191 1/27/2016 0000001  3M TP77164 SHEETING NUMBERS  334.26

Total :  334.26

 165192 1/27/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 23972 EXP REIMB  65.54

Total :  65.54

 165193 1/27/2016 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20160102 MONTHLY LICENSE  199.00

1Page:

19



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  199.00 165193 1/27/2016 0007646 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC

 165194 1/27/2016 0001486  AIRPORT WINDSOCK CORPORATION 46722 WINDSOCK  84.13

Total :  84.13

 165195 1/27/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51166903 BATTERIES  240.77

 120.39BATTERIES51166904

Total :  361.16

 165196 1/27/2016 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 25390 KEYS  5.43

 5.87KEYS26065

Total :  11.30

 165197 1/27/2016 0008092  AMADIO, WENDY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165198 1/27/2016 0000712  AMERIGAS 3047880973 PROPANE  571.01

Total :  571.01

 165199 1/27/2016 0002044  ANACORTES.NET/HOW IT WORKS 36479 JAN 2016/WEB HOSTING  75.00

 15.95JAN 2016/WEB HOSTING36493

Total :  90.95

 165200 1/27/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0851408-IN FUEL  7,458.64

 17,127.67FUEL0854298-IN

Total :  24,586.31

 165201 1/27/2016 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 39331 REGISTRATION/SERVATIUS/HIZON  300.00

Total :  300.00

 165202 1/27/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X0124201 AIRCARDS  407.13

Total :  407.13

 165203 1/27/2016 0003980  BHC CONSULTANTS 0007409 2015 PROF SVC/TEMPORARY BUILDING INSPECT 1,923.15

Total :  1,923.15

 165204 1/27/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2558 NAME TAGS  7.00

2Page:

20



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  7.00 165204 1/27/2016 0007807 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES

 165205 1/27/2016 0000112  BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC WEB000407669 HOOD  119.39

Total :  119.39

 165206 1/27/2016 0007960  BOTTORFF, JOANNE 1 TRAVEL REFUND  10.00

Total :  10.00

 165207 1/27/2016 0001558  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC 82022704 GLOVES/BP SYSTEM/EXTRICATION COLLARS  431.75

 29.16EXTRICATION COLLARS82026080

Total :  460.91

 165208 1/27/2016 0000131  BROADVIEW APPLIANCE 34978 HOOD  64.13

Total :  64.13

 165209 1/27/2016 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF1763597-88998107 REGISTRATION/MERRILL/BUXTON  350.00

Total :  350.00

 165210 1/27/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 695135 SUPPLIES  515.97

Total :  515.97

 165211 1/27/2016 0006016  CARTER, MARGOT L 011116 PUBLIC DEFENSE  1,200.00

Total :  1,200.00

 165212 1/27/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 03963180678 2015 NATURAL GAS/210  10.71

 706.672015 NATURAL GAS/POLICE STATION08793000004

 432.592015 NATURAL GAS/20811829220273

 115.092015 NATURAL GAS/20712470743597

 45.202015 NATURAL GAS/20513275491754

 1,518.782015 NATURAL GAS/FIRE STATION3662400000

 265.582015 NATURAL GAS/ANIMAL SHELTER40661045647

 163.362015 NATURAL GAS/20245420760055

 10.712015 NATURAL GAS/20157309970234

 858.742015 NATURAL GAS/CITY HALL58793000009

 66.302015 NATURAL GAS/20462337906945

 99.222015 NATURAL GAS/20967984882349

 2,553.822015 NATURAL GAS/CITY SHOP80434000008

 90.422015 NATURAL GAS/ANNEX82193000005

3Page:

21



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165212 1/27/2016 (Continued)0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS

 107.932015 NATURAL GAS/ADULT CARE CENTER90134000000

 10.712015 NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  7,055.83

 165213 1/27/2016 0000398  CHIEFS OF POLICE, INTERNATIONAL ASSOC OF1001189597 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/GREEN  150.00

Total :  150.00

 165214 1/27/2016 0000179  CLERKS PETTY CASH 012116 PETTY CASH  69.11

Total :  69.11

 165215 1/27/2016 0008090  COASTAL COTTAGE HOMES, INC BL-005900 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  25.00

Total :  25.00

 165216 1/27/2016 0001433  COLE, DONNA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165217 1/27/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 COMCAST BUSINESS SERVICES  119.76

Total :  119.76

 165218 1/27/2016 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1444965 ECOL BLK  611.44

Total :  611.44

 165219 1/27/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 001-86902 SENSOR  85.20

Total :  85.20

 165220 1/27/2016 0000234  DAVID EVANS & ASSOCIATES, INC 369079 2015 PROF SVC/VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK SID 5,471.98

Total :  5,471.98

 165221 1/27/2016 0000256  DAY WIRELESS SYSTEMS 401048 REPAIR SERVICE  364.56

 362.19BATTERY/ANTENNA402910

Total :  726.75

 165222 1/27/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-533621 ANTI-SCALP KIT  81.69

 126.37PLASTIC DECK WHEEL KIT1-533681

Total :  208.06

 165223 1/27/2016 0007638  DOWNTOWN MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION 011116 REIMBURSEMENT  2,500.00

4Page:

22



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,500.00 165223 1/27/2016 0007638 0007638  DOWNTOWN MERCHANTS ASSOCIATION

 165224 1/27/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 013116 JAN 2016/LAUNDRY SERVICES  268.45

Total :  268.45

 165225 1/27/2016 0005622  EC POWER SYSTEMS 41963402 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  747.86

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963403

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963404

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963407

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963408

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963409

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963412

 428.28PLANNED MAINTENANCE41963413

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963414

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963415

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963416

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963417

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963418

 747.86ANNUAL MAINTENANCE41963419

 2,636.37ASSEMBLY419868

Total :  12,786.83

 165226 1/27/2016 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 2016-WAR045554 STORMWATER PERMIT  7,150.50

Total :  7,150.50

 165227 1/27/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 16-00682 TESTING  18.00

 300.00TESTING16-00771

Total :  318.00

 165228 1/27/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK21920 HWSLSMS  14.10

 167.62RNSTSETSWAOAK21981

 29.35FASTENERSWAOAK22023

Total :  211.07

 165229 1/27/2016 0000956  FINANCE OFFICERS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF1330595-63930178 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/BOYER  50.00

Total :  50.00

 165230 1/27/2016 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY 3439093 BOOTS  172.06

5Page:

23



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  172.06 165230 1/27/2016 0000314 0000314  FISHERIES SUPPLY COMPANY

 165231 1/27/2016 0007141  FREEDOM PROPERTIES, LLC 013116 JAN 2016/ANIMAL SHELTER  2,500.00

Total :  2,500.00

 165232 1/27/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 007-6244 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  258.72

 83.47CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-0841

 113.08CURRENT PHONE CHARGES279-2236

 70.42CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-2111

 64.64CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-3121

 59.22CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6794

 200.00CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-5551

 73.89CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8702

 35.11CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2694

 28.80CURRENT PHONE CHARGES770-2715

Total :  987.35

 165233 1/27/2016 0001636  GALT, JOHN E 2925 PROCESS CLAIM  60.00

Total :  60.00

 165234 1/27/2016 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  400.00

 1,531.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  1,931.00

 165235 1/27/2016 0000349  GRAINGER 9933415003 TRAFFIC CONES  187.51

 102.91DANGER SIGN9936265694

Total :  290.42

 165236 1/27/2016 0002940  GRAY & OSBORNE, INC 2 DEC 2015/PROF SVC 10-INCH PIPELINE BRIDG  4,213.37

Total :  4,213.37

 165237 1/27/2016 0000345  GREATER OAK HBR CHAMBER OF COM 011416 REIMBURSEMENT  8,333.34

Total :  8,333.34

 165238 1/27/2016 0004974  GREEN LIGHT SOLUTIONS 8359 MAINTENANCE & INSPECTIONS  940.00

Total :  940.00

 165239 1/27/2016 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 631602 ALARM BATTERY/PARTS  1,090.52

6Page:

24



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165239 1/27/2016 (Continued)0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY

 18.00INSTRUSION SYSTEM631620

Total :  1,108.52

 165240 1/27/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4114764 FREIGHT  72.28

Total :  72.28

 165241 1/27/2016 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 56762350 COMPUTER  43.05

Total :  43.05

 165242 1/27/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 969166 COFFEE SUPPLIES  47.11

Total :  47.11

 165243 1/27/2016 0001469  INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL 1000646758 IFC SOFT/COMMENTARY SET/LOOSE TABS COMBO 639.86

Total :  639.86

 165244 1/27/2016 0002935  ISLAND COUNTY EMS COUNCIL 011316 REGISTRATION/FLETCHER/JANSEN/REYNOLDS 1,539.00

Total :  1,539.00

 165245 1/27/2016 0004410  ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC HEALTH 011916 PERMIT RENEWAL  287.00

Total :  287.00

 165246 1/27/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 012016 4TH QTR 2015/MUNICIPAL COURT EXPENSES  47,470.18

 4,654.504TH QTR 2015 JANIITORIAL/REPAIRS/OVERHEA4

Total :  52,124.68

 165247 1/27/2016 0000433  ISLAND DRUG 114508235288 INMATE MEDS  38.50

Total :  38.50

 165248 1/27/2016 0000441  ISLAND SYSTEMS 238765 WATER/MARINA  7.15

 7.15WATER/MARINA238989

 14.30WATER/MARINA239363

Total :  28.60

 165249 1/27/2016 0004005  ISLAND TINTING 011516 TINTING  271.70

Total :  271.70

 165250 1/27/2016 0008094  ISS WONDERWARE 405909 UPG INTOUCH  2,206.56

7Page:

25



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,206.56 165250 1/27/2016 0008094 0008094  ISS WONDERWARE

 165251 1/27/2016 0006362  KBA, INC 3002578 DEC 2015 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY & 44,221.88

Total :  44,221.88

 165252 1/27/2016 0006201  LABOR ARBITRATION INSTITUTE 012116 REGISTRATION/ESPARZA  495.00

Total :  495.00

 165253 1/27/2016 0007930  LACY & PAR 70341P PROF SVC/CITY LIMITS POSTCARDS  1,739.64

Total :  1,739.64

 165254 1/27/2016 0008093  LEAFGUARD NORTHWEST, INC BL-004259 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  25.00

Total :  25.00

 165255 1/27/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400224827 TIRES  383.52

 144.35TIRES41400226741

Total :  527.87

 165256 1/27/2016 0005814  LIBERTY MUTUAL 601098840 2016 BOND/SEVERNS  175.00

Total :  175.00

 165257 1/27/2016 0007201  LIFETEK TRAINING, INC 16-07 ALIGNMENT FEE  60.00

Total :  60.00

 165258 1/27/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2132963-00 JACKET  236.39

Total :  236.39

 165259 1/27/2016 0000515  LOGGERS & CONTRACTORS, INC 00065345 ADAPTER/HOSE  409.84

Total :  409.84

 165260 1/27/2016 0001909  LONG, JAY 1 DRIVING SERVICES  69.00

Total :  69.00

 165261 1/27/2016 0006636  LUCITY, INC 86795-1 2016 PROGRAM RENEWAL  11,728.64

Total :  11,728.64

 165262 1/27/2016 0001637  LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 312218 INTEGRISWAB/PROSCALE  185.66

Total :  185.66

8Page:

26



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165263 1/27/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 109842 SOIL  119.46

 119.46SOIL109849

 119.46SOIL109881

Total :  358.38

 165264 1/27/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 598086 GROCERIES  313.50

 5.45GROCERIES598090

 454.45GROCERIES701627

Total :  773.40

 165265 1/27/2016 0000362  MARSH-MCBIRNEY - HACH COMPANY 9746490 SAMPLE CELL/TEST STRIP  214.89

Total :  214.89

 165266 1/27/2016 0005025  MASCOTT EQUIPMENT 356144 NOZZLES  269.39

Total :  269.39

 165267 1/27/2016 0000040  MATRIX 608436976 2015 LONG DISTANCE  372.99

Total :  372.99

 165268 1/27/2016 0000546  MATTHEWS, PHILLIP EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  13.00

Total :  13.00

 165269 1/27/2016 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  37.46

Total :  37.46

 165270 1/27/2016 0002291  MCYOUNG, MARY 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165271 1/27/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  794.19

Total :  794.19

 165272 1/27/2016 0004818  MICHAEL BOBBINK LAND USE SRVCS 012116 JAN 2016/HEARING EXAMINER SERVICES  1,708.33

Total :  1,708.33

 165273 1/27/2016 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV126520 PUSH BUTTON SWITCH  13.83

 57.96SENSORMV127029

 188.31AIR CYLMV127316

9Page:

27



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  260.10 165273 1/27/2016 0000587 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC

 165274 1/27/2016 0001041  MUNICIPAL ATTORNEYS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF1662201-88559914 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/ESPARZA  15.00

Total :  15.00

 165275 1/27/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES 00704585_SNV WAIST PADS/TEMPLE STRAP/BAND ASSY  765.35

Total :  765.35

 165276 1/27/2016 0007979  MYERS, JACK 1 TRAVEL REFUND  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165277 1/27/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCR0039424 RECEPTACLE -2.99

 105.09SEALS/WRENCHMVCS0255346

 827.95SERVICEMVCS0255401

Total :  930.05

 165278 1/27/2016 0007670  NETWORKFLEET, INC OSV000000340913 DEC 2015 MONTHLY SERVICE  243.49

Total :  243.49

 165279 1/27/2016 0005767  NORTHWEST RUNNER MAGAZINE 1349 2016 ADVERTISING  253.33

 760.002016 ADVERTISING1426

Total :  1,013.33

 165280 1/27/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 265856 NIPPLE/COUPLE/THREAD SEAL TAPE  13.12

 2.92NIPPLE/COUPLE/THREAD SEAL TAPE265859

 2.25SAN WIPES265876

 16.57BULB265892

 8.14DOOR HOLD265958

 21.73BALL VALVE265961

 47.81CHAIN/HP ULTRA265985

 24.99CHAIN266010

 23.32DEODORIZER/NOZZLE/SCRUBBER266075

 7.60TOWEL BAR266114

 6.51SILICONE266121

 0.48FASTENERS266140

 7.60NOZZLE266144

 33.20RAIN X/STEELWOOL/SPRING/TACK CLOTH266158

 31.26FASTENERS/BIT TIP/BLADE/SCREWS/BLADES266183

10Page:

28



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165280 1/27/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE

 17.31TUBE266265

 6.72METAL REPAIR TAPE/ANCHOR266275

 178.24PAINT266276

 1.62NIPPLE266314

 21.72RESCUE TAPE266315

Total :  473.11

 165281 1/27/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-261516 HOSE  16.23

 5.58AUVECOPAK001-261635

 4.40FILTERS001-261797

 8.82FILTERS001-261798

 141.70FILTERS001-261863

 39.22FILTERS001-261864

 25.49HOSE001-262122

 73.61FILTERS001-262541

-14.01FILTERS001-262544

 43.67STANDYNE DIESEL ADDIT001-262778

 30.43FILTERS001-262779

Total :  375.14

 165282 1/27/2016 0006743  OAK HARBOR ELKS LODGE 013116 MARATHON SERVICES  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 165283 1/27/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150062 JAN 2016/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  11,092.00

Total :  11,092.00

 165284 1/27/2016 0008091  PACIFIC CABLE CONSTRUCTION, IN BL-001845 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  5.00

Total :  5.00

 165285 1/27/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0095192 TIRES  82.46

 86.26TIRES0095193

 1,863.10TIRES0095330

 122.61TIRES0095487

 745.20TIRES0095488

 717.53TIRES0095495

Total :  3,617.16

11Page:

29



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165286 1/27/2016 0007751  PHENOVA 119223 DISSOLVED OXYGEN  110.60

Total :  110.60

 165287 1/27/2016 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0031059-IN UNI-SORB  139.90

 227.45GLOVES0031061-IN

 89.71GLOVES0031146-IN

Total :  457.06

 165288 1/27/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000919684 2015 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK WINDMIL  10.26

 2,417.272015 ELECTRICITY/CITY SHOP200000947859

 52.022015 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK BATH200001097589

 22.112015 ELECTRICITY/1888 NE 5TH AVE PUMP200001884218

 122.952015 ELECTRICITY/30505 ST ROUTE 20200002036164

 50.822015 ELECTRICITY/34777 STATE ROUTE 20 SI200002036719

 28.962015 ELECTRICITY/2000 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS200002037097

 10.772015 ELECTRICITY/1780 SW SPRINGFIELD CT200002037261

 127.792015 ELECTRICITY/3285 SW SCENIC HEIGHTS200002037501

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/552 NW CLIPPER DR200002170617

 11.152015 ELECTRICITY/2075 SW FT200002511539

 178.722015 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR CMFTS200002723381

 18.012015 ELECTRICITY/1000 SE IRELAND ST200003267636

 169.512015 ELECTRICITY/1957 FORT NUGENT RD RES200003459654

 25.262015 ELECTRICITY/650 NE 7TH AVE SEWAGE200004342099

 183.642015 ELECTRICITY/800 SE MIDWAY BLVD200004562878

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/1577 NW 8TH AVE200004856627

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/SMITH PARK200005263310

 56.212015 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK WKITCH200005461666

 5,586.452015 ELECTRICITY/700 SE PIONEER WAY LAGO200005933094

 14.472015 ELECTRICITY/5941 STATE ROUTE 20200006103952

 276.832015 ELECTRICITY/700 AV W & MIDWAY200007702943

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/75 SE JEROME ST200007824192

 10.772015 ELECTRICITY/FABER ST & HARVEST DR200008386993

 20.942015 ELECTRICITY/ANNEX200008816189

 36.912015 ELECTRICITY/2330 SW ROSARIO PL200010322895

 147.852015 ELECTRICITY/1948 NW CROSBY AVE200010499248

 20.222015 ELECTRICITY/1661 NE 16TH AVE SWRSTA200010499446

 65.612015 ELECTRICITY/651 SE BAYSHORE DR LIGH200010530240

12Page:

30



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165288 1/27/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 118.802015 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200010530802

 267.362015 ELECTRICITY/940 SE PIONEER WAY CAB200010531024

 10.772015 ELECTRICITY/1300 NE BIG BERRY LOOP200010531172

 221.652015 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK CABI200010531354

 154.102015 ELECTRICITY/800 SE DOCK ST200010531941

 32.072015 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR BALLP200010699706

 613.872015 ELECTRICITY/SR 20 & 650 AV W200011316839

 43.292015 ELECTRICITY/ADULT CARE CENTER200011551930

 25.302015 ELECTRICITY/285 SE JEROME ST200011579964

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/128 E WHIDBEY AVE200012220337

 1,103.892015 ELECTRICITY/FIRE STATION200012278087

 5,610.412015 ELECTRICITY/TREATMENT PLANT200012425357

 18.702015 ELECTRICITY/PIONEER PARK200012838765

 5,291.352015 ELECTRICITY/MARINA200013370750

 1,738.242015 ELECTRICITY/672 CHRISTIAN RD PUMP200013734963

 287.492015 ELECTRICITY/1540 SE PIONEER WAY LIF200013968405

 56.022015 ELECTRICITY/1370 SE DOCK ST200014151886

 939.232015 ELECTRICITY/CITY HALL200014596478

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/1678 SW 8TH AVE200015399153

 168.902015 ELECTRICITY/600 NE 7TH AVE200015618321

 84.612015 ELECTRICITY/287 SE CABOT DR SWRPMP200015685833

 642.862015 ELECTRICITY/690 SW HELLER RD WTRTWR200017255619

 441.392015 ELECTRICITY/CITY BEACH PARK200017441482

 67.892015 ELECTRICITY/1367 NW CROSBY AVE SIGN200017575347

 85.592015 ELECTRICITY/3300 OLD GOLDIE RD PUMP200017653656

 232.502015 ELECTRICITY/1000 SW THORNBERRY DR P200017654415

 11.432015 ELECTRICITY/2081 NE 9TH AVE SWRPMP200017853025

 1,640.962015 ELECTRICITY/POLICE STATION200017968427

 94.162015 ELECTRICITY/90 SE PIONEER WAY LIGHT200019043344

 36.712015 ELECTRICITY/1137 NW KATHLEEN DR PUM200019500517

 40.142015 ELECTRICITY/626 CHRISTIAN RD200020179194

 1,589.612015 ELECTRICITY/SENIOR CENTER200020235012

 10.162015 ELECTRICITY/1500 S BEEKSMA DR KITES200020308330

 120.582015 ELECTRICITY/980 SW MCCROHAN ST PUMP200022441113

 26.892015 ELECTRICITY/TRAILER PK S END200022988147

 67.982015 ELECTRICITY/945 E WHIDBEY AVE #B200023231067

13Page:

31



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165288 1/27/2016 (Continued)0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY

 45.442015 ELECTRICITY/700 W HELLER RD TRAFFI200023360569

 36.682015 ELECTRICITY/1285 NE TAFTSON ST LFTP200024715845

 146.372015 ELECTRICITY/33500 STATE ROUTE 20200025075157

 151.402015 ELECTRICITY/2725 NE GOLDIE ST220000598098

 84.612015 ELECTRICITY/END OF GUN CLUB RD220002244337

 962.252015 ELECTRICITY/101220003651407

 704.632015 ELECTRICITY/275 SE PIONEER WAY220003735804

 30.092015 ELECTRICITY/1770 NE GOLDIE ST PUMP220005593946

 272.502015 ELECTRICITY/301 SE PIONEER WAY220005790955

 31.652015 ELECTRICITY/2900 N OAK HARBOR RD PU220007681624

 394.502015 ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000005003

 2,709.542015 ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421

 60.302015 ELECTRICITY/PARKS300000009906

 511.23ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010458

 345.43ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000010516

Total :  38,107.98

 165289 1/27/2016 0000753  RADIOSHACK 027547 USB STACKABLE  43.46

Total :  43.46

 165290 1/27/2016 0007944  RAMIREZ, JOSEPH EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  20.00

Total :  20.00

 165291 1/27/2016 0007885  REDNECK PROPERTIES, LLC 013116 JAN 2016/PARKING LOT RENTAL  1,650.00

Total :  1,650.00

 165292 1/27/2016 0006727  ROMAINE ELECTRIC 3-002905 BOSCH IREF  184.74

 118.67DELCO SD803-005704

-243.49CREDIT5-001410

Total :  59.92

 165293 1/27/2016 0000911  RON TURLEY ASSOCIATES, INC 45599 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE  1,467.45

Total :  1,467.45

 165294 1/27/2016 0006689  ROPPO'S WOOD & ENGRAVING BL-002847 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  4.50

Total :  4.50

14Page:

32



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165295 1/27/2016 0000781  SAFEWAY 430856 GROCERIES  14.99

 16.00GROCERIES431388

 20.66GROCERIES800335

 10.99GROCERIES801939

 72.43GROCERIES803232

-5.54GROCERIES804314

Total :  129.53

 165296 1/27/2016 0007800  SEBRIS BUSTO JAMES 59602 2015 PROF SERVICES/BARGAINING  896.00

Total :  896.00

 165297 1/27/2016 0005085  SEVERNS, ROBERT TRAVEL REIMB TRAVEL REIMB  166.32

 540.19TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  706.51

 165298 1/27/2016 0000964  SHERIFFS & POLICE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OFDUES 2016-00186 MEMBERSHIP DUES/GREEN  305.00

Total :  305.00

 165299 1/27/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9408918117 SHREDDING  56.68

 89.64SHREDDING9408918244

Total :  146.32

 165300 1/27/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-316828 WORKLAMP  126.72

Total :  126.72

 165301 1/27/2016 0007909  SKAGIT CITY TRUCKING SCHOOL 813 REGISTRATION  2,125.00

Total :  2,125.00

 165302 1/27/2016 0000876  SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE 23491 4TH QTR 2015/BUILDING OPERATIONS  16,782.43

Total :  16,782.43

 165303 1/27/2016 0002901  SMITH & LOVELESS, INC 108180 SPARE SHAFT  518.47

Total :  518.47

 165304 1/27/2016 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0082727-IN VALVE  91.45

 222.35GRIPPER PAD0082899-IN

 1,487.14PUMP CARTRIDGE0082907-IN

 464.17SOLENOID MUNCIE PUMP0082924-IN

15Page:

33



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165304 1/27/2016 (Continued)0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC

 853.81COOLER0082976-IN

Total :  3,118.92

 165305 1/27/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW676808 CITY NOTICES  123.35

Total :  123.35

 165306 1/27/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3288909343 CALENDARS/TONER/CORD  441.83

 2,717.49PRINTER3288909344

 168.96CALENDAR/POST IT NOTIES3289506485

 200.42PRTBL EXT HD3289506486

 27.95HEATER3289506487

 162.60TONER/FOLDERS3289506491

Total :  3,719.25

 165307 1/27/2016 0000856  STATE AUDITOR'S OFFICE L112029 2015 AUDIT SERVICES FOR 2014  2,465.25

Total :  2,465.25

 165308 1/27/2016 0003749  STUMP, PATRICK L 1 DRIVING SERVICES  120.00

 96.00DRIVING SERVICES1

Total :  216.00

 165309 1/27/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1091543 PEST EXTERMINATION  59.79

 54.35PEST EXTERMINATION1092267

 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1092615

Total :  173.93

 165310 1/27/2016 0006438  TAURUS POWER & CONTROLS, INC 359415 SERVICE S/T  609.92

Total :  609.92

 165311 1/27/2016 0005841  TOKAY SOFTWARE 15566 ANNUAL SUPPORT  430.00

Total :  430.00

 165312 1/27/2016 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF011916 UTILITY PERMIT APPLICATION FEE  500.00

Total :  500.00

 165313 1/27/2016 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-150078 CAFR STATEMENT BUILDER INSTALLATION FEE  500.00

16Page:

34



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  500.00 165313 1/27/2016 0000287 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

 165314 1/27/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W026 SHIPPING  1.99

 12.16SHIPPING0000A0182W036

Total :  14.15

 165315 1/27/2016 0000922  UNUM LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 121815 2016 LONG TERM CARE  338.12

Total :  338.12

 165316 1/27/2016 0003360  VALENZUELA, JONATHAN M TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  407.00

Total :  407.00

 165317 1/27/2016 0000932  VERIZON WIRELESS 9758535714 CURRENT COMM CHARGES  5,431.65

Total :  5,431.65

 165318 1/27/2016 0005079  WASHINGTON INSTITUTE OF SPORTS OH1502 WELLNESS EXAMS  3,000.00

Total :  3,000.00

 165319 1/27/2016 0001052  WASHINGTON STATE PATROL I16004560 2015 BACKGROUND CHECKS  1,032.50

Total :  1,032.50

 165320 1/27/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 270992 SWIVEL  49.90

-11.96AIR HOSE271046

Total :  37.94

 165321 1/27/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48215 BUSINESS CARDS/SEVERNS  97.61

 98.10MAYOR'S NOTESHEETS48216

 243.54MAYOR'S LETTERHEAD48217

 527.33LETTERHEAD/SEVERNS48218

 236.53NOTECARDS/BLANK ENVELOPES48237

 218.98PRESENTATION FOLDERS48239

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/THOMPSON48246

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/GLUTH48257

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/GLUTH48259

 59.79BUSINESS CARDS/BLACK48264

Total :  1,661.25

 165322 1/27/2016 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS 61462 TROUBLESHOOTING  23.10

17Page:

35



01/27/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

18

 1:35:03PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  23.10 165322 1/27/2016 0007510 0007510  WHIDBEY TECH SOLUTIONS

 165323 1/27/2016 0006151  WHIDBEY WEEKLY, LLC 4657 ADVERTIISING  270.00

Total :  270.00

 165324 1/27/2016 0001067  ZEP SALES & SERVICE 9002043660 AERO/PEST CONTROL SPRAY  415.74

Total :  415.74

Bank total :  381,744.13 144 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 381,744.13Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 144

18Page:

36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Resolution No. 16-06: Island 
Transportation Planning 
Organization (ITPO)

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 16-06 and authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement forming the Island 
Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO). 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
For years, Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Policy Organization (SIRTPO) existed to focus on 
long-range transportation planning issues and projects in Skagit and Island County.  Both counties 
maintained separate Regional Transportation Planning Organizations (RTPO) that met as individual 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Resolution No. 16-06: Island 
Transportation Planning 
Organization (ITPO)

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 16-06 and authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement forming the Island 
Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO). 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
For years, Skagit-Island Regional Transportation Policy Organization (SIRTPO) existed to focus on 
long-range transportation planning issues and projects in Skagit and Island County.  Both counties 
maintained separate Regional Transportation Planning Organizations (RTPO) that met as individual maintained separate Regional Transportation Planning Organizations (RTPO) that met as individual 
organizations, but that also met jointly depending on issues.  The Island County RTPO was comprised of
members from Island County, City of Oak Harbor, City of Langley, Town of Coupeville, Island County
Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, Washington
State Department of Transportation, Island County Economic Development Association and Naval Air 
Station Whidbey Island. The SIRTPO was responsible for approval and allocation of federal 
transportation funds, some of which were divided between the two counties and some that were 
combined.

Recently, Skagit County elected officials decided to withdraw from the SIRTPO since their population 
growth reached a level that allowed them to form their own RTPO without relying on Island County’s 
population.  Skagit County exercised their authority to do so over the objections of Island County RTPO.

The member agencies of the former Island County RTPO believe it is beneficial for this type of planning
organization to continue to exist and propose to form an organization through the interlocal agreement 
process.  The attached document was developed through the Island County Council of Governments and 
was vetted by the potential members as well as their legal counsel.  Oak Harbor’s City Attorney assisted 
in the preparation of this document. 

The proposed organization, the Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO), will serve in place of
the old RTPO and act as a forum for mutual cooperation. It will function in an advisory capacity, assisting

maintained separate Regional Transportation Planning Organizations (RTPO) that met as individual 
organizations, but that also met jointly depending on issues.  The Island County RTPO was comprised of 
members from Island County, City of Oak Harbor, City of Langley, Town of Coupeville, Island County 
Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, Washington 
State Department of Transportation, Island County Economic Development Association and Naval Air 
Station Whidbey Island. The SIRTPO was responsible for approval and allocation of federal 
transportation funds, some of which were divided between the two counties and some that were 
combined.

Recently, Skagit County elected officials decided to withdraw from the SIRTPO since their population 
growth reached a level that allowed them to form their own RTPO without relying on Island County’s 
population.  Skagit County exercised their authority to do so over the objections of Island County RTPO.

The member agencies of the former Island County RTPO believe it is beneficial for this type of planning 
organization to continue to exist and propose to form an organization through the interlocal agreement 
process.  The attached document was developed through the Island County Council of Governments and 
was vetted by the potential members as well as their legal counsel.  Oak Harbor’s City Attorney assisted 
in the preparation of this document. 

The proposed organization, the Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO), will serve in place of 
the old RTPO and act as a forum for mutual cooperation. It will function in an advisory capacity, assisting 

37



in the furtherance of Countywide Planning Policies and other regionally adopted plans.  The ITPO will 
function similar to the RTPO in recommending how federal transportation funds should be allocated for 
projects within Island County. The ITPO will be comprised of members from Island County, City of Oak 
Harbor, City of Langley, Town of Coupeville, Island County Public Transportation Benefit Area 
Corporation, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, Washington State Department of 
Transportation, Island County Economic Development Association and Naval Air Station Whidbey 
Island.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There are no fiscal impacts with action on this agenda bill.  The dissolution of the SIRTPO does not 
reduce the federal transportation dollars allocated to Island County and will therefore not impact the 
annual review and recommendation of transportation related projects.  The City will have access to these
funds through the ITPO and Island County.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented to the City Council at the January 20, 2016 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement
2. Resolution No. 16-06

in the furtherance of Countywide Planning Policies and other regionally adopted plans.  The ITPO will 
function similar to the RTPO in recommending how federal transportation funds should be allocated for 
projects within Island County. The ITPO will be comprised of members from Island County, City of Oak 
Harbor, City of Langley, Town of Coupeville, Island County Public Transportation Benefit Area 
Corporation, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, Washington State Department of 
Transportation, Island County Economic Development Association and Naval Air Station Whidbey 
Island.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
There are no fiscal impacts with action on this agenda bill.  The dissolution of the SIRTPO does not 
reduce the federal transportation dollars allocated to Island County and will therefore not impact the 
annual review and recommendation of transportation related projects.  The City will have access to these 
funds through the ITPO and Island County.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
This item was presented to the City Council at the January 20, 2016 workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Interlocal Agreement
2. Resolution No. 16-06

38

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453486161_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453486190_at.pdf


Page 1 of 8 

Return To: 

Island County 
P.O. Box 5000 
1 NE 7th Street 
Coupeville, WA 98239 

AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT AMONG ISLAND COUNTY, CITY OF OAK HARBOR, CITY OF 
LANGLEY, TOWN OF COUPEVILLE, ISLAND COUNTY PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION BENEFIT 
AREA CORPORATION, PORT OF SOUTH WHIDBEY, PORT OF COUPEVILLE, WASHINGTON 

STATE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, ISLAND COUNTY ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL AND NAVAL AIR STATION WHIDBEY ISLAND, TO FORM THE 

ISLAND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION, AND DEFINE ITS PURPOSE AND 
STRUCTURE. 

THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into among Island County, a political subdivision of the 
State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as the “County,” the City of Oak Harbor, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Washington, the City of Langley, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Washington, the Town of Coupeville, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington, the Island 
County Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation, herein referred to as “Island Transit,” the Port of 
South Whidbey, a public port district of the State of Washington, the Port of Coupeville, a public port 
district of the State of Washington, the Washington State Department of Transportation, an agency of 
the State of Washington, hereinafter referred to as “WSDOT,” Island County Economic Development 
Council, and Naval Air Station Whidbey Island, a Naval Air Station of the United States Department of 
Defense, hereinafter referred to as “NAS Whidbey,” collectively referred to as the “Members.” 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, under chapter 39.34 RCW, counties, cities and other public agencies are authorized 
to enter into interlocal cooperative agreements to jointly engage in activities each is authorized by law 
to do on its own; and 

WHEREAS, Island County, the City of Oak Harbor, City of Langley , Town of Coupeville, Island 
Transit, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, WSDOT, Island County Economic Development 
Association, and NAS Whidbey find it appropriate to form a county-wide, regionally focused 
transportation planning organization hereby known as the ISLAND TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION; and 

WHEREAS, WSDOT Local Agency Guidelines Manual section 12.3.33 specifies that a “County 
Lead Agency” is responsible for developing a county-wide approach to select priority transportation 

39



Page 2 of 8 
 

projects in their respective boundaries in areas that are not associated with a Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) or Regional Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO); and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.210 establishes a framework for counties and cities to collaborate and 
establish countywide planning policies to ensure consistency in county and city comprehensive planning 
regarding regional issues; and 
 
 WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.210(3)(d) provides that a countywide planning policy shall, at a 
minimum, address policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Island County Countywide Planning Policies were adopted on November 3, 2015 
with the adoption of Ordinance C-100-15; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Countywide Planning Policies’ stated transportation goal in 2.10 is that “Island 
County should be served by an efficient, well connected, multimodal transportation system.  
Transportation plans, spending decisions, and regulations will be consistent with, and reinforce adopted 
land use and economic development plans”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Countywide Planning Policy 3.8.1 states that “All transportation planning, including 
that of Federal or State agencies, and Port Districts, should be jointly and cooperatively developed, 
adopted and implemented through coordinated and collaborative planning efforts”; and 
 

WHEREAS, Countywide Planning Policy 3.8.2 provides that “the County and Municipalities 
should each actively participate in multi-county, multi-jurisdictional, regional transportation planning, 
including planning for Washington State Ferries”; and 

 
WHEREAS, in addition, chapter 36.64 RCW also provides for the establishment of a conference 

for the purpose of studying regional transit issues;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals, the Members hereby agree to the terms and 
conditions as set forth in the following sections of this Interlocal Agreement (“Agreement”): 
 
 

Section 1: FORMATION 
 

A voluntary association and joint board, comprised of representatives of County, City of Oak Harbor, 
City of Langley, Town of Coupeville, Island Transit, Port of South Whidbey, Port of Coupeville, WSDOT, 
Island County Economic Development Association and NAS Whidbey is hereby created and shall be 
known as the Island Transportation Planning Organization, referred to hereinafter as the “ITPO.”  The 
ITPO is solely an advisory body to provide recommendations to the Members and the formation of the 
ITPO is not in any way intended to create a separate legal or administrative entity as the ITPO lacks 
governmental decision-making authority. 

40



Page 3 of 8 
 

Section 2: PURPOSE  
 
Members recognize that certain rural counties in the State of Washington do not meet the minimum 

population requirements to participate in the RTPO program under RCW 47.80.020, yet the needs of 
rural counties and the jurisdictions within them to cooperatively develop and implement the 
transportation system persists; and 

 
As outlined in the WSDOT Local Agency Guidelines Manual chapter 12, County Lead agencies are 

responsible for developing a countywide approach to select priority transportation projects in their 
respective boundaries and have the authority to allocate federal transportation funds;  
 

The purpose of the Island County Transportation Planning Organization shall be for the Members to 
collaborate at a countywide regional level to ensure that the County, as the County Lead Agency for the 
region, is allocating federal transportation funds in a manner that most effectively addresses the needs 
of the entire county and all of the jurisdictions within it in order to solve regional transportation 
problems of mutual interest and concern.  

 
The Island County Transportation Planning Organization is not authorized to supersede the authority 

vested in the member agencies, but is intended to serve as a forum for mutual cooperation in an 
advisory capacity in furtherance of the transportation goal and policies stated in the Countywide 
Planning Policies. 

 
Section 3: DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS  
 
The Transportation Planning Organization will fulfill its purpose by performing the following duties 

and functions and such other or additional duties and functions as determined necessary and 
appropriate by the Policy Board as described in Section 4 below: 

 
1. Recommend to Island County and the other Members how federal transportation funds 

allocated to Island County by the Washington State Department of Transportation should be 
awarded to projects within Island County. As the lead agency, Island County will ultimately 
decide on the projects through competitive project selection processes determined by 
Island County and in accordance with State and Federal requirements. 

 
2. Recommend amendments to the State Transportation Improvement Program for projects 

within Island County to be adopted by the appropriate local government. 
 
3. Be a forum for mutual learning about transportation plans and projects of interest to the 

Members of the Island Transportation Planning Organization and, when appropriate, the 
ITPO may prepare and present advisory recommendations in regards to regional 
transportation planning to the Island County Council of Governments as well as the 
individual Member governing bodies. 

41



Page 4 of 8 
 

 
4. Recommend an annual work program to be adopted by Island County as required by the 

Washington State Department of Transportation in order to receive state transportation 
planning funds. 

 
5. Coordinate with jurisdictions outside of Island County to periodically study the connectivity 

between Whidbey and Camano Islands and surrounding regions and identify concerns 
regarding such connectivity, and prepare an advisory report on these studies. 

 
6. Prepare and periodically update a transportation strategy for the region that will serve as a 

recommendation for the County, and the cities within the County, to adopt1. 
 
7. Prepare a regional transportation plan as a recommendation to be adopted by the Member 

organizations2. 

 
8. Recommend guidelines and principles as well as an advisory report for the periodic review 

of the transportation element of Island County and the cities’ comprehensive plans to be 
considered for adoption by each local government within Island County. 

 
9. Provide an advisory recommendation as to whether the Transportation Elements of the 

comprehensive plans of the cities within Island County are consistent with the Island County 
Transportation Element of its comprehensive plan.  

 
10. Compile and maintain a six-year transportation improvement program (TIP) for all federally-

funded transportation projects within the borders of Island County, including projects 
sponsored by Island County, the Town of Coupeville, the cities of Langley and Oak Harbor, 
Island Transit, and WSDOT. 

 
11. Review level of service methodologies and develop recommended level of service standards 

to be adopted by Island County and other Members required as under the GMA. 
 
12. Prepare a recommended update to the Human Services Transportation Plan3 every four 

years, and prepare a recommended prioritized human services transportation project list 
every two years, with final approval by the Board of Island County Commissioners who will 
submit the final to the Washington State Agency Council on Coordinated Transportation 
(ACCT). 

                                                             
1 Countywide Planning Policies section 3.8 will serve as the transportation strategy for the organization until or 
unless a more specific strategy is developed by the ITPO and ultimately adopted by the Member organizations. 
2 The Island County Transportation Element will serve as the regional transportation plan for the organization until 
or unless a separate regional transportation plan is developed by the ITPO and ultimately adopted by the Member 
organizations and incorporated into the Island County Countywide Planning Policies. 
3 The HSTP may be developed in conjunction with neighboring jurisdictions that are not part of the ITPO. 

42



Page 5 of 8 
 

Section 4:  ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 
  
The Transportation Planning Organization shall be governed by a nine member board of voting 

members, hereby known as the “Policy Board,” made up of the three Island County Commissioners, the 
mayors from Oak Harbor, Coupeville and Langley, one port commissioner from the Port of South 
Whidbey, one port commissioner from the Port of Coupeville, and the board chair from Island Transit. 
Additional non-voting members shall include the community planning liaison from Naval Air Station 
Whidbey Island and the planning & engineering services manager from the Northwest Region / Mt. 
Baker area office of the Washington State Department of Transportation. Any members of the state 
House of Representatives or the Senate whose districts are wholly or partly within the boundaries of the 
transportation planning organization are considered ex officio, non-voting Policy Board members.  
 
 The Transportation Planning Organization shall include a Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
comprised of staff members representing the agencies on the Policy Board, a staff member of the Island 
County Economic Development Council, and a citizen representative from each County Commissioner 
District. The primary role of the TAC is to make recommendations to the Policy Board, at the request of 
the Policy Board, in support of realizing the purpose of the organization and fulfillment of its duties. 
 

The Transportation Planning Organization Policy Board shall select from among its voting members a 
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson, who shall be selected according to the Bylaws. 

 
 
Section 5:  DURATION 
 
The Island County Transportation Planning Organization, as a long range county-wide, regionally 

focused transportation planning organization, shall continue in duration until the Members decide to 
mutually dissolve the ITPO or, at least for a Member organization, the Member organization decides to 
terminate its membership in the ITPO in accordance with Section 8 of this Agreement.  
 
 

Section 6: MEETINGS AND VOTING 
 
The Transportation Planning Organization Policy Board shall meet at such times and places as set 

forth in the Bylaws. The Chair of the Policy Board, as well as the Vice-Chairperson, shall be elected at the 
first meeting of each calendar year. The meetings shall be conducted in accordance with chapter 42.30 
RCW, the Open Public Meetings Act. A quorum for conducting business shall be a majority of voting 
members present. All decisions must be made by a majority vote of the quorum present at a meeting.  
 

Section 7: ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF AND SUPPORT 
 

The Island County Transportation Planner shall provide administrative support and assistance to the 
Transportation Planning Organization. 

43



Page 6 of 8 
 

Section 8: TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP 
 

 An individual Member agency may withdraw from the Island County Transportation Planning 
Organization by giving sixty (60) days written notice to the Island County Transportation Planning 
Organization. The Voting Member agencies that withdraw will not absolve themselves from the 
responsibility for meeting any obligations or agreements which exist between the Island County 
Transportation Planning Organization and its Member organizations at the time of withdrawal. 

  
  
Section 9: EFFECTIVE DATE  
 
This Agreement shall become effective upon the signature of each of the Members’ governing 

bodies or executive with signing authority and the filing of this agreement with the Island County 
Auditor on the same date as the last signatory to sign this document. This Agreement may be signed in 
counterparts, each which shall be considered the same as an original. Prior to its entry into force, this 
Agreement shall be filed with the Island County Auditor. 

 
 
Section 10: NO FINANCIAL OBLIGATION FOR MEMBERS 
 
No dues or other finances will be imposed upon members of the Transportation Planning 

Organization. 
 
 
Section 11: PROPERTY UPON TERMINATION 
 
No property will be purchased by or shared between Members in a formal capacity as a function of 

their involvement in the Transportation Planning Organization. 
 
Section 12: INDEMNIFICATION 
 
Each party agrees to be responsible and assume liability for its own wrongful and/or negligent acts 

or omissions or those of their officials, officers, agents, or employees to the fullest extent required by 
law, and further agrees to save, indemnify, defend, and hold the other party(s) to this Interlocal 
Agreement harmless from any such liability. 

 
Section 13:  SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Agreement, or its application to any person or circumstance is held invalid, 

the remainder of the Agreement, or the application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is 
not affected. 
 

44



Page 7 of 8 
 

Voting Members 
 
Board of Island County Commissioners   City of Oak Harbor 
Island County, Washington 
 
 
______________________ ________  ______________________ ________ 
Helen Price Johnson, Chair Date   Bob Severns, Mayor  Date 
 
 
 
City of Langley      Town of Coupeville 
 
 
______________________ ________  _____________________ ________ 
Fred McCarthy, Mayor                Date   Nancy Conard, Mayor  Date 
 
 
 
Port of South Whidbey     Port of Coupeville 
 
 
______________________ ________  _____________________ ________ 
Curt Gordon, Commissioner Date   Marshall Bronson, Commissioner        Date 
 
 
 
Island County Public Transportation Benefit Area Corporation dba Island Transit 
 
 
______________________     _________ 
Rick Almberg, Chair           Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



Page 8 of 8 
 

Non-Voting Members 
 
Washington State Dept. of Transportation, NW Region / Mt. Baker Area   
 
 
____________________________________________  ________   
Todd Harrison, Assistant Regional Administrator    Date    
 
 
 
Naval Air Station Whidbey Island    
 
 
____________________________________   ________   
Jennifer Meyer, Community Planning Liaison   Date  
 
 
 
Island County Economic Development Council 
 
 
_________________________________   ________ 
Ron Nelson, Executive Director     Date    
 

46



CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-06 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN ISLAND 
COUNTY, CITY OF OAK HARBOR, CITY OF LANGLEY, TOWN OF COUPEVILLE, ISLAND 
TRANSIT, PORT OF SOUTH WHIDBEY, PORT OF COUPEVILLE, WASHINGTON STATE 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, ISLAND COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
ASSOCIATION AND NAVAL AIR STATION WHIDBEY ISLAND TO FORM ISLAND 
TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ORGANIZATION   

WHEREAS, under chapter 39.34 RCW, counties, cities and other public agencies are authorized to 
enter into interlocal cooperative agreements to jointly engage in activities each is authorized by law to 
do so on its own; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.210 establishes a framework for counties and cities to collaborate and es-
tablish countywide planning policies to ensure consistency in county and city comprehensive plan-
ning regarding regional issues; and 

WHEREAS, Countywide Planning Policy 3.8.1 states that “All transportation planning, including that 
of Federal and State agencies, and Port Districts, should be jointly and cooperatively developed, 
adopted and implemented through coordinated and collaborative planning efforts”; and 

WHEREAS, the City benefits from actively participating in multi-county, multi-jurisdictional, re-
gional transportation planning including planning for Washington State Ferries; and 

WHEREAS, in addition, chapter 36.64 RCW also provides for the establishment of a conference for 
the purpose of studying regional transit issues; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the above recitals, Island County, City of Oak Harbor, City of Lang-
ley, City of Coupeville, Washington State Department of Transportation, Island County Economic 
Development Association, and Naval Air Station Whidbey Island find it appropriate to form a re-
gional transportation organization known as the ISLAND TRANSPORTION PLANNING ORGANI-
ZATION; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, Washing-
ton, the Mayor is authorized to enter into this interlocal agreement creating the Island Transportation 
Planning Organization (ITPO). 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 2nd day of 
February 2016. 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 

_____________________________ 
BOB SEVERNS, MAYOR 

Attest:  Approved as to Form: 

__________________________ _____________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk  Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 

47



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Department of Corrections Jail 
Contract for Services K9413(3)

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review the contract and authorize the Mayor to sign it. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Since 2012 the Oak Harbor City Jail at the Oak Harbor Police Department has been used by 
Department of Corrections (DOC) to house their prisoners. 

The City of Oak Harbor charges DOC for these services at the state rate: $66.95 a day (2016-2017); 
$68.96 a day (2018). 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Department of Corrections Jail 
Contract for Services K9413(3)

FROM: Edgar J. Green, Chief of Police 

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Staff requests that the City Council review the contract and authorize the Mayor to sign it. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Since 2012 the Oak Harbor City Jail at the Oak Harbor Police Department has been used by 
Department of Corrections (DOC) to house their prisoners. 

The City of Oak Harbor charges DOC for these services at the state rate: $66.95 a day (2016-2017); 
$68.96 a day (2018). $68.96 a day (2018). 

The DOC use of our facilities enables them to house prisoners for short term (either for sentencing or 
transit) without having to travel to a Washington State Facility (80 miles to Monroe Correctional Facility;
100 to 175 miles to Shelton Correctional Facility). 

The DOC also covers all costs associated with their prisoners, and if they are disruptive to our inmate 
population they will remove them at our request.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Revenue:

January to December 2015 - $8,770.45

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Previous Contract Approved:

DOC Contract (Amendment) #K9413   November 5, 2014

$68.96 a day (2018). 

The DOC use of our facilities enables them to house prisoners for short term (either for sentencing or 
transit) without having to travel to a Washington State Facility (80 miles to Monroe Correctional Facility; 
100 to 175 miles to Shelton Correctional Facility). 

The DOC also covers all costs associated with their prisoners, and if they are disruptive to our inmate 
population they will remove them at our request.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT
Revenue:

January to December 2015 - $8,770.45

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
Previous Contract Approved:

DOC Contract (Amendment) #K9413   November 5, 2014

48



DOC Contract (Amendment) #K9413   November 5, 2014

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Corrections Cover Letter (Incorrect Name for Mayor) 
2. Department of Corrections Prisoner Contract 2016-2018

DOC Contract (Amendment) #K9413   November 5, 2014

ATTACHMENTS
1. Department of Corrections Cover Letter (Incorrect Name for Mayor) 
2. Department of Corrections Prisoner Contract 2016-2018

49

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453481599_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=14534815991_at.pdf


50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Report attached. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Council Meeting updates requested by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review Clean Water Facility Project Report attached. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Council Meeting updates requested by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2/02/2016 Report

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. 2/02/2016 Report

76

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453941497_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update February 2, 2016 
1 

CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – February 2, 2016
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  

RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B (Deep Excavation)

• Sewer main relocated
• Stone columns completed

• Site Preparation Package C (Micro-piles) - GMP #6 awarded January 19, 2016
• Windjammer Park Integration Plan - Citizen Advisory Group first meeting last Wednesday (1/20)
• Process Structures – 90% design completed

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B

• Sheet piles will start arriving on site next week
• Proceed with development of the Windjammer Park Integration Plan (next meeting Feb 4th at

Elk’s Lodge)
• SCADA Controls Amendment to Carollo’s Contract for consideration February 2, 2016

CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design – 
Process Structures 

Carollo Engineers is completing the 90% design drawings 
for the process structures associated with the treatment 
plant. 

90% 

Facility Design – 
Biosolids Building 

Design of the Biosolids building is at approximately 30%. 30% 

Facility Design – 
Admin/Maintenance 

Design of the Admin, Maintenance and Community room 
are at approximately 30%. 

30% 

CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 
Item Description Progress % 
Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete. 
Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Preliminary work has begun on Site Preparation Package C 
which was approved on January 19th by City Council.  Work 
will include micro-piles in the bottom of the deep 
excavation and installation of a tower crane 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 
Bioreactors and Aeration Basins has been completed.  
Hoffman is currently preparing a cost estimate for the 
proposed work.  KBA is providing cost validation. 

90% 

77



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  February 2, 2016 
2 

 

PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 
Pending Permits Description 

• Boundary Line Adjustment 
• Foundation permit 

 
• Site Plan Amendment 

• The Boundary Line Adjustment complete. 
• Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 

foundation permit. 
• The design team is revising the site plan submittal to reflect Concept 

B and the community room. 
 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 
Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun May 2016 
GMP #6 (Site Preparation C) Construction activities have begun July 2016 

 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% Design is expected 
to begin in October. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

78



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  February 2, 2016 
3 

 

GMP #6 (Site Prep C) $4,311,589 Site Preparation Package C will includes installation of micro-
piles, preparation for a tower crane and extension of the outfall 
to the site. 

Community Room TBD City Council elected to include the Community Room into the 
project at the December 15, 2015 Meeting. 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 
The 2016 CWSRF agreement has been drafted and is being reviewed. 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

On January 21, 2016 we received news that the CWF is on the 2017 proposed 
funding list for an additional $42,632,742 in SRF Loans at an interest rate of 
1.6%.  The final approved list comes from the state legislature and typically 
occurs around July. 

Bonds The City’s financial advisor for the project, PFM, presented options for issuing 
bonds for the new Clean Water Facility at the September 30th City Council Special 
Workshop.  The City is reviewing our funding options with regards to CWSRF vs. 
Bonds to develop the most advantageous funding program for the project. The 
goal is to reduce the overall burden on the rate payers. City staff initiated 
preparation of POS statement necessary to issue revenue bonds. 

Rates HDR presented potential rate impacts of the new Clean Water Facility to City 
Council at a Special Workshop held September 30th.  Staff is currently reviewing 
the impacts of the funding sources listed above, current bond rates and the 
estimated cost of the project to determine how the project rates might be 
impacted by the construction cost increases and lower financing rates.  Staff is 
proceeding with a bond sale in early this year. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant 

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program. 

Bond Anticipation Note Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 
a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
  

79



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update February 2, 2016 
4 

COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 
Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

With initiation of the Site Prep B portion of the project, the project team has 
implemented the Good Neighbor Plan.  A project brochure was sent to all 
addresses in the city.  New project signs have been posted at the site.   

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

A workshop with City Council was held on December 16th highlighting City Council 
priorities.  A Citizen Advisory Group is currently being established to develop a 
plan for the area surrounding the Clean Water Facility.  The first meeting of the 
Citizen Advisory Group will be held January 20th. 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 

Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 

Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 

General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 

Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

We are here 

80

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon 
Update by Race Director - Elks 
Lodge

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Elks Lodge Member Jason Wayne will provide updates regarding the 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Monthly Reports request by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.ii
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon 
Update by Race Director - Elks 
Lodge

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Elks Lodge Member Jason Wayne will provide updates regarding the 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Monthly Reports request by City Council.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

81



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 13 
for SCADA Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 13 with
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total contract amount from $9,605,341 to 
$11,433,496.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction of the new Clean Water Facility involves a wide variety of mechanical and electrical systems 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: February 2, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - Carollo 
Engineers - Consultant 
Agreement Amendment No. 13 
for SCADA Services

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
It is recommended that the City Council Authorize the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 13 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,828,155, increasing the total contract amount from $9,605,341 to 
$11,433,496.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Construction of the new Clean Water Facility involves a wide variety of mechanical and electrical systems Construction of the new Clean Water Facility involves a wide variety of mechanical and electrical systems 
to treat the sewage.  The new plant has over 60 distinct systems which require monitoring of over 2,500 
operating points and controlling approximately 12,000 logic loops.  Controlling these systems requires 
real time monitoring and control to avoid failure.  Modern plants are controlled by a computer network 
called a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system (SCADA). 

Implementing a SCADA system requires computer hardware, commercial software, and facility specific 
software development.  Generally a system integrator is hired to handle the individual software 
development.  This system integrator must understand the mechanical/electrical systems, document all the 
operations information provided by the contractor, implement the control logic to actually run the 
equipment, coordinate the software development with the construction activities, test the software prior to 
startup, train City Staff in its operation, confirm system success during the startup process, and provide 
follow through after construction completion.

The City has elected to use Carollo Engineers for system integration services rather than obtaining an 
outside contractor.  This decision was based upon:

 Carollo’s detailed knowledge of the treatment system requirements.
 Carollo’s expertise in providing SCADA systems.
 Carollo’s ability to adapt the SCADA development as the design evolves and through the submittal

process.


Construction of the new Clean Water Facility involves a wide variety of mechanical and electrical systems 
to treat the sewage.  The new plant has over 60 distinct systems which require monitoring of over 2,500 
operating points and controlling approximately 12,000 logic loops.  Controlling these systems requires 
real time monitoring and control to avoid failure.  Modern plants are controlled by a computer network 
called a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system (SCADA). 

Implementing a SCADA system requires computer hardware, commercial software, and facility specific 
software development.  Generally a system integrator is hired to handle the individual software 
development.  This system integrator must understand the mechanical/electrical systems, document all the 
operations information provided by the contractor, implement the control logic to actually run the 
equipment, coordinate the software development with the construction activities, test the software prior to 
startup, train City Staff in its operation, confirm system success during the startup process, and provide 
follow through after construction completion.

The City has elected to use Carollo Engineers for system integration services rather than obtaining an 
outside contractor.  This decision was based upon:

 Carollo’s detailed knowledge of the treatment system requirements.
 Carollo’s expertise in providing SCADA systems.
 Carollo’s ability to adapt the SCADA development as the design evolves and through the submittal 

process.


82



 Carollo’s ability to begin SCADA implementation prior to construction and to adapt to the
GC/CM process

 Carollo’s ability to provide operator training

The attached Carollo Engineers Contract Amendment No. 13 reflects the proposed scope of work in 
detail.  This estimate includes both the labor cost to implement the system ($1,445,767) along 
with hardware and software cost associated with the system ($382,388).  The additional scope of 
services has increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by $1,828,155, increasing the total
contract amount from $9,605,341 to $11,433,496.  The project will require further Carollo contract 
amendments for services during construction as new GMP’s are brought forward.  

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $1,828,155

Appropriation Source: Wastewater Fund / General Fund      

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment was discussed at the January 20, 2016 City Council Workshop.

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 

 Carollo’s ability to begin SCADA implementation prior to construction and to adapt to the
GC/CM process

 Carollo’s ability to provide operator training

The attached Carollo Engineers Contract Amendment No. 13 reflects the proposed scope of work in 
detail.  This estimate includes both the labor cost to implement the system ($1,445,767) along 
with hardware and software cost associated with the system ($382,388).  The additional scope of 
services has increased the time and materials, not to exceed, contract by $1,828,155, increasing the total 
contract amount from $9,605,341 to $11,433,496.  The project will require further Carollo contract 
amendments for services during construction as new GMP’s are brought forward.  

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: $1,828,155

Appropriation Source: Wastewater Fund / General Fund      

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

This amendment was discussed at the January 20, 2016 City Council Workshop.

CITY COUNCIL PREVIOUS ACTIONS

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater
treatment plant.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment
plant.

March 23, 2010 – City Council authorized staff to begin contract negotiations with Carollo Engineers for 
the wastewater treatment plant facility.

August 4, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Carollo Engineers for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $1,089,561 for the Oak Harbor Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.

October 16, 2012 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 5 with Carollo 
Engineers for additional site investigation related to a new wastewater treatment plant.

January 15, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to negotiate engineering services with Carollo 
Engineers for preliminary and final plans and specifications for a new wastewater treatment plant.

March 19, 2013 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 6 
with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $2,081,168 for preliminary design related to the new wastewater 
treatment plant.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign consultant agreement Amendment No. 
10 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $4,586,959 for final design of the new wastewater treatment 
plant.

83



May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 
Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13
2. Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA and Previous Amendments
3. Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

May 5, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 11 with Carollo 
Engineers in the amount of $201,876, increasing the total contract amount from $7,907,388 to 
$8,109,264.

October 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign Contract Amendment No. 12 with 
Carollo Engineers in the amount of $1,496,077, increasing the total contract amount from $8,109,264 to 
$9,605,341.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13
2. Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA and Previous Amendments
3. Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary

84

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453914336_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453914687_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=aa37751b7c17fdc21ea54cb39c038c95&aName=1453915039_at.pdf


85



86



1218 Third Avenue, Suite 1600 • Seattle, Washington 98101
P. 206.684.6532  F. 206.903.0419

carollo.com

January 19, 2016

Brett Arvidson
City Engineer
City of Oak Harbor
865 SE Barrington Drive
Oak Harbor, WA 98277

Subject: SCADA Integration and Programming Services Proposal for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility 

Dear Brett:

Thank you for this opportunity to provide a draft scope of services for SCADA integration at the Oak Harbor Clean 
Water Facility. Our team of engineers, programmers, and operators has a single goal — to provide the most effective, 
innovative control solutions customized to meet your needs. 

We appreciate the opportunity to continue serving the City and we look forward to discussing our programming 
services with you.

Respectfully Yours,

CAROLLO ENGINEERS

Jeffrey A. Martin     Monte Richard
Vice President      Associate Vice President
Chief of Programming Services    Principal EI&C Engineer

87



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  1 

Scope of Work

INTRODUCTION

CONSULTANT will provide programming and SCADA 
programming services associated for the Oak Harbor 
Clean Water Facility. These services will include project 
design assistance, software coordination, supervisory 
control and data acquisition (SCADA) hardware and 
software integration, programmable logic controller 
(PLC) programming, SCADA Historian configuration, 
trending creation, report configuration, factory and field 
testing, startup, training, and warranty period services. 

TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
COORDINATION AND PLAN 

1.01 Scheduling, Progress Reports, 
Invoicing and Project Management Plan

The CONSULTANT will submit a Project Management 
Plan (PMP) including the following elements:

  Scope 

  Budget

  Team Structure

  Team member contact information

  Workshop/Meeting Plan

  Schedule - tasks, meetings, milestones, delivery dates, 
regular monthly meetings and milestones

  Expectations of CITY

The CONSULTANT will submit monthly progress 
reports with each invoice to substantiate the progress of 
work to date, including potential out-of-scope items. This 
information will be utilized to determine if any changes 
are required in the management of the project.

CONSULTANT will oversee project efforts, monitor 
progress and budget expended, and ascertain proper 
execution of the project in accordance with the project 
scope, schedule, and budget.

It is assumed that the CONSULTANT will spend 4 hours 
per month preparing and reviewing the monthly Project 
Summary Reports.

1.02 Kickoff and Goal Setting Meeting

The CONSULTANT will conduct one, four-hour Project 
Kickoff and Goal Setting Meeting at the CITY’s facility. 
The meeting will include up to two representatives 

from the CONSULTANT. The purpose of the Project 
Kickoff Meeting will be to review the overall project goals, 
critical success factors, scope of work, schedule, lines of 
communication, and individual expectations.

1.03 Construction Progress Meetings

The CONSULTANT will attend weekly progress 
meetings throughout construction via conference call. A 
construction project duration of 24 months is assumed from 
notice to proceed through final completion and beginning 
of the warranty period. 

TASK 2 - DESIGN PHASE PROGRAMMING 
AND COORDINATION

CONSULTANT’s programming team will assist the design 
team with early programming coordination and planning 
between all technical disciplines. 

2.01 Development and Review of the 
Process Control Network Design

The CONSULTANT will assist in the development and 
review of the process and control network architecture, 
network routing diagrams, SCADA block diagrams, I/O 
list, and network panel layouts. Specific programming 
details will be incorporated as required to meet the 
CITY’s developed software and programming standards. 
Specifically, items like tag naming, tag database verification, 
and software architecture will be verified with the CITY’s 
software standards.

2.02 Facility Site Visits

The CONSULTANT will facilitate two site visits to 
wastewater facilities within the area who utilize a SCADA 
system for automated control. Site visit will include a 
presentation of the sites SCADA system followed by a 
lessons learned discussion with the facility staff to assess the 
merits and shortcomings of the facilities SCADA system.

2.03 Develop PLC and SCADA Software 
Standards

The CONSULTANT will develop PLC and SCADA 
Software Standards. These standards will be utilized 
throughout construction of the Clean Water Facility and 
will be written so that they can serve as a CITY standard 
for future projects. The effort of developing the Software 
Standards will be coordinated closely with CITY staff. 

88



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  2 

2.04 - 2.05 Software Standards 
Workshops

In order to facilitate the coordination of the PLC 
and SCADA Software Standards with the CITY, the 
CONSULTANT will conduct two Software Standards 
Workshops. The details of the workshops are listed in the 
following table: 

TASK 3 – PROGRAMMING SERVICES 
DURING CONSTRUCTION

The CONSULTANT will provide programming services 
during the construction phase. The services will include 
PLC and SCADA configuration services, various 
coordination meetings during construction, factory 
testing, field testing, start-up services, commissioning, and 
O&M training.

3.01 Hardware and Software Submittals

The CONSULTANT will furnish SCADA hardware 
and software submittals for items furnished by the 
CONSULTANT as detailed in Bill of Material Furnished 
by CONSULTANT.

3.02 PLC and SCADA Development

The CONSULTANT will provide PLC programming 
and SCADA software configuration for the Clean Water 
Facility. The CONSULTANT will provide flow charts 
and annotated function blocks to assist with future 
adjustments/troubleshooting of the program.

The CONSULTANT will develop the tag database and 
perform verification with all vendor applications. The 
CONSULTANT will provide PLC logic coordination 
with all vendor supplied PLCs.

Refer to assumptions section for I/O counts used for 
determining the total PLC and SCADA programming 
effort.

3.03 Historian Configuration and Custom 
Trend Screen Development

The CONSULTANT will provide Historian configuration 
and create a total of ten (10) trend screens customized 
by the CONSULTANT and CITY during the Software 
Coordination Meetings. 

3.04 Regulatory Compliance and Custom 
Operational Report Configuration

The CONSULTANT will configure a total of two (2) 
custom regulatory compliance and five (5) custom 
operational reports. The specifics of the reports will be 
customized by the CONSULTANT and CITY during the 
Software Coordination Meetings.

3.05 Software Coordination Meetings

The CONSULTANT will conduct  construction phase 
coordination meetings. The anticipated meetings are listed 
below:

  One (1) SCADA system configuration meeting 
for SCADA and PLC network communications 
coordination with CITY

  Two (2) Vendor programming coordination meetings 
with Vendors and CITY

  Four (4) software coordination meetings with CITY

  Construction period coordination with CITY, 
Contractor, and key subcontractors including electrical, 
ICSC, Vendors.

3.06 Attend Offsite Factory Acceptance Test 
(FAT)

The CONSULTANT will attend and assist the 
Instrumentation and Control System Contractor (ICSC) 
in conducting the witnessed control panel factory 
acceptance test (FAT) located at the ICSC facility. The 
CONSULTANT will prepare applicable FAT testing forms 
no less than one (1) week in advance of the date of the 
testing. 

3.07 Attend Vendor Systems Factory 
Acceptance Test

The CONSULTANT will attend the witnessed factory 
acceptance tests for Vendor provided systems to confirm 
software interfaces and general conformance to the project’s 
programming standards. It is assumed there will be a total 
of three (3) separate vendor factory acceptance tests, each 
lasting three (3) days.

WORKSHOPS

Subtask 
No.

Meeting Title Duration Consultant’s 
Team

Other 
Attendees

2.04 Preliminary 
Software 
Standards 
Workshop

4 hours Jeff Janowiak
Monte Richard

CITY 
SCADA 

Staff

2.05 Final Software 
Standards 
Workshop

4 hours Jeff Janowiak
Monte Richard

CITY 
SCADA 

Staff

89



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  3 

3.08 Conduct Software Acceptance Test 
(SAT)

The CONSULTANT will conduct a Software 
Acceptance Test (SAT) located in the CONSULTANT’s 
Roseville Cyber Lab. The CONSULTANT will prepare 
SAT testing plans and forms prior to conducting the 
SAT. The SAT shall include the configuration of 
communications and testing of the connection between 
SCADA and Vendor PLC’s. The CONSULTANT will 
test SCADA interface and screen functionality with all 
Vendor PLCs during the SAT.

3.09 Conduct Complete End-to-End 
Testing (CEET)

The CONSULTANT will provide Complete End to End 
Testing (CEET). After the electrical contractor has fully 
completed and submitted all loop drawings for review 
and approval and the ICSC have completed the control 
system installation. The CEET will occur only after the 
Contractor has submitted certified test reports that all 
field wiring has been tested and verified against the loop 
drawings. The CONSULTANT shall go to the field and 
load the PLC program for testing and the PLC will be 
connected to the network at this time. During the CEET, 
signals are tested through the PLC program, the network, 
and all the way to the operator’s SCADA graphic screens.

The Complete End-to-End Test (CEET) will be 
performed by the CONSULTANT and Contractor 
working together, with assistance from the CITY or the 
inspection staff, as needed. The CONSULTANT will 
provide staff to verify input signals at, and create output 
signals from, the SCADA system. The Contractor will be 
responsible for creating field signals and verifying proper 
operation of final control elements. It is assumed that 
full time dedicated Contractor staff assistance will be 
provided during the CEET. It has been assumed that the 
CEET will last six (6) weeks

3.10 Conduct Strategy Field Testing (SFT)

The CONSULTANT will provide Strategy Field Testing 
(SFT). After CEET and the contractor’s testing of the 
manual operation of equipment, the Strategy Field 
Testing (SFT) will be performed by the CONSULTANT 
with assistance from the Contractor and assistance from 
the CITY or the inspection staff, as needed. 

The purpose of the SFT is to verify the proper operation 
of all PLC control logic and its interaction with field 
equipment and devices. The CONSULTANT will 
exercise programs, conduct tests, and record results. 
Contractor staff will be responsible for equipment 
operation and verification of correct field operation 
results. Programmer will tune any feedback loops. It has 
been assumed that the SFT will last four (4) weeks.

3.11 Operational Readiness Testing (ORT)

The CONSULTANT will provide Operational Readiness 
Testing (ORT) after completion of the CEET and SFT. The 
ORT will be performed by the CONSULTANT. 

The purpose of the ORT is to conduct a final test after 
all other testing activities have been performed, and all 
SCADA components have been installed to confirm the 
system is ready for live deployment. The ORT will test 
for database backup, database recovery, correct software 
installation and configuration, failover operation, access 
control, and security viability. It has been assumed that the 
ORT will last two (2) weeks.

3.12 MCC Smart Overload and VFD 
Configuration

The CONSULTANT will provide configuration of all smart 
overload and VFD starters. The CONSULTANT will 
configure the network connection as well as program each 
starter for local and remote operations as indicated in the 
control strategies. Physical wiring of the starters along with 
wiring to/from the associated circuit components will be 
conducted by the Contractor.

3.13 Operation and Maintenance Manuals

The CONSULTANT will provide Operation and 
Maintenance Manuals for the following items:

  CEET, SFT, and ORT test results

  SCADA system hardware and software

  PLC system software

  Final PLC programs, including final flow charts, 
annotated function blocks.

  Final control sequencing describing startup, operation, 
shutdown, and safety procedures

Electronic copies of the individual Operation and 
Maintenance sections listed above will be delivered to the 
Contractor for incorporation into the overall project O&M 
manual.

3.14 Close-Out Services

The CONSULTANT will provide close-out services 
in order to finalize outstanding issues on the CITY’s 
programming punch list. It has been assumed that the 
close-out services will last two (2) weeks.

90



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  4 

TASK 6 - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES

6.01 Warranty Period Services

The CONSULTANT will provide warranty period 
services during the 1 year warranty period following 
final completion of the construction contract. Warranty 
services will include on-call, dial-in adjustments in 
addition to on-site visits following final completion of the 
construction contract.

Additional Items Not Included:

1.  PLC Hardware and associated training.

2.  Construction and associated testing of PLC cabinets.

3.  Hardware and Software not specifically called out in 
the Bill of Materials Furnished by CONSULTANT.

4. Work efforts for other items not specifically listed in 
this proposal.

5. Programming of Vendor provided PLCs.

Assumptions:

1. PLC and SCADA programming and configuration 
effort was based on approximately 2500 hard and soft 
I/O. The approximate I/O is broken up as shown in 
the following table:

2. The Contractor shall perform complete testing of 
all Ethernet cabling (Fiber and/or Copper) per the 
specifications. Testing must certify all paths to CAT 6 
specifications and provide a formal written report to 
CONSULTANT.

3.  CONSULTANT will use standard Rockwell PLC 
programming function blocks and add-on instructions 
as much as possible to develop the PLC code for this 
project.

 

HARDWIRED I/O 162

VCP I/O 681

SOFT I/O 941

VCP MBR I/O 494

VCP UV I/O 66

CENTRIFUGES NO. 1 AND NO. 2 118

VCP Dryer I/O TBD

TASK 4 - OPERATIONS AND 
MAINTENANCE TRAINING SERVICES

4.01 Training Preparation

The CONSULTANT will prepare training materials 
and handouts prior to conducting the on-site training. 
Training material will be delivered to the CITY no less 
than one (1) week in advance of the date of the training.

4.02 - 4.11 Training Courses

CONSULTANT will conduct the training courses 
detailed in the following table:

TASK 5 - Network Hardware and Software 
Configuration

5.01 SCADA Network Hardware and 
Software Configuration

The CONSULTANT will configure the network 
hardware and software provided by the CONSULTANT 
listed in the Bill of Material Provided by CONSULTANT. 
CONSULTANT will configure the network area racks as 
well as the network server racks. The CONSULTANT 
will perform setup and configuration of the SCADA 
servers, Historian server, authentication server, Network 
Attached Storage, Local Operator Interfaces, thin client 
nodes, and SCADA workstations.

OPERATOR TRAINING SERVICES

Subtask No. / 
Course Title

Minimum 
Course 

Length (hours 
per session)

Personnel 
(Estimated 

No. of 
Students)

Minimum 
No. of 

Sessions

4.02 System Overview 8 8 1

4.03 Operator Training 
        - Basic

24 8 2

4.04 Operator Training 
        - Advanced

16 5 2

4.05 CIS (Computer) 
Equipment Maintenance

8 4 1

4.06 Historian System 
Training

16 5 1

4.07 Reports Training 8 5 2

4.08 PLC Software 32 6 1

4.09 HMI Hardware and 
Software

16 5 1

4.10 Network Equipment 16 4 1

4.11 Follow-up Training 8 5 5

91



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  5 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
En

gi
ne

er

EI
C

 L
ea

d 
Pr

of
es

si
on

al

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
er

 II
I

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
er

 II

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
er

 I

D
oc

um
en

t 
Pr

oc
es

si
ng

228$ 205$ 198$ 167$ 140$ 102$

1.01 Scheduling, Progress Reports, Invoicing, Project Management Plan 156 16 116 24 32,180$ -$ 32,180$                           
1.02 Kick-off and Goal Setting Meeting 32 16 16 6,448$ 1,835$ 8,283$                             
1.03 Construction Progress Meetings 168 96 48 24 32,544$ -$ 32,544$                           

2.01 Development and Review of  the Process Control Network Design 24 24 4,752$ -$ 4,752$                             
2.02 Facility Site Visits 24 8 16 5,104$ 1,705$ 6,809$                             
2.03 Develop PLC and SCADA Software Standards 84 4 40 40 14,340$ -$ 14,340$                           
2.04 Preliminary Software Standards Workshop 16 8 8 3,224$ 1,835$ 5,059$                             
2.05 Final Software Standards Workshop 16 8 8 3,224$ 1,835$ 5,059$                             

3.01 Hardware and Software Submittals 92 4 32 24 24 8 15,340$ -$ 15,340$                           
3.02 PLC and SCADA Development 3,424 2200 1224 606,960$ -$ 606,960$                         
3.03 Historian Configuration and Custom Trend Screen Development 180 180 25,200$ -$ 25,200$                           
3.04 Custom Operational Report Configuration 112 112 15,680$ -$ 15,680$                           
3.05 Software Coordination Meetings 256 24 116 116 44,128$ 8,270$ 52,398$                           
3.06 Attend Offsite Factory Acceptance Test (FAT) 66 58 8 12,604$ 3,080$ 15,684$                           
3.07 Attend Vendor Systems Factory Acceptance Tests 200 120 80 34,960$ 4,220$ 39,180$                           
3.08 Software Acceptance Testing (SAT) 344 176 168 58,368$ -$ 58,368$                           
3.09 Complete End-to-End Testing (CEET) 360 180 180 60,840$ 7,510$ 68,350$                           
3.10 Strategy Field Testing (SFT) 300 160 140 51,280$ 7,510$ 58,790$                           
3.11 Operational Readiness Testing (ORT) 120 80 40 21,440$ 7,510$ 28,950$                           
3.12 MCC Smart Overload and VFD Configuration 120 40 80 19,120$ -$ 19,120$                           
3.13 Operation and Maintenance Manuals 80 8 32 32 8 13,272$ -$ 13,272$                           
3.14 Close-Out Services 120 80 40 21,440$ 3,755$ 25,195$                           

4.01 Training Preparation 188 96 16 68 8 32,016$ 8,810$ 40,826$                           
4.02 System Overview 10 10 1,980$ -$ 1,980$                             
4.03 Operator Training Basic 60 60 11,880$ -$ 11,880$                           
4.04 Operator Training Advanced 40 40 7,920$ -$ 7,920$                             
4.05 Computer Equipment Maintenance 10 10 1,400$ -$ 1,400$                             
4.06 Historian System Training 20 20 3,960$ -$ 3,960$                             
4.07 Reports Training 20 20 3,340$ -$ 3,340$                             
4.08 PLC  Software 40 40 7,920$ -$ 7,920$                             
4.09 HMI Hardware and Software 20 20 2,800$ -$ 2,800$                             
4.10 Network Equipment 20 20 3,340$ -$ 3,340$                             
4.11 Follow Up Training 48 24 24 8,112$ -$ 8,112$                             

5.01 Network Hardware and Software Configuration 208 208 34,736$ -$ 34,736$                           

6.01 Warranty Period Services 248 48 120 80 44,800$ 3,083$ 47,883$                           

7226 24 348 3852 288 2690 24 1,266,652$ 60,958$ 1,327,610$

1,327,610$        

118,157$           

1,445,767$        LABOR AND EXPENSES TOTAL

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
PROGRAMMING SERVICES

LABOR AND EXPENSES SUBTOTAL

CONTINGENCY AND ESCALATION

TASK FEETASK DESCRIPTION
TASK 

NUMBER  Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
H

ou
rs

 

Labor Cost

 Travel, 
Subsistence, and 

Other 
Reimbursables 

ALL TASKS

TASK 1 - PROJECT MANAGEMENT COORDINATION AND PLAN

TASK 2 - DESIGN PHASE PROGRAMMING AND COORDINATION

TASK 3 - PROGRAMMING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

TASK 4 - OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TRAINING SERVICES

TASK 5 - NETWORK HARDWARE AND SOFTWARE CONFIGURATION

TASK 6 - WARRANTY PERIOD SERVICES

PROGRAMMING SERVICES

Compensation for the Programming Services scope of work is presented in the following table.

92



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\Scope.indd Scope of Work  |  6 

BILL OF MATERIAL FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT

The following table is a bill of material showing equipment that will be provided by the CONSULTANT. 

BOM Number Materials  Markup on 
Materials Total Cost

1 10,568$ 2,114$ 12,682$
2 9,459$ 1,892$ 11,351$
3 55,681$ 11,136$ 66,817$
4 8,160$ 1,632$ 9,792$
5 32,500$ 6,500$ 39,000$
6 16,902$ 3,380$ 20,282$
7 8,451$ 1,690$ 10,141$
8 4,600$ 920$ 5,520$
9 4,360$ 872$ 5,232$
10 2,180$ 436$ 2,616$
11 20,000$ 4,000$ 24,000$
12 15,341$ 3,068$ 18,409$
13 20,400$ 4,080$ 24,480$
14 25,915$ 5,183$ 31,098$
15 4,200$ 840$ 5,040$
16 16,780$ 3,356$ 20,136$
17 4,158$ 832$ 4,990$
18 1,545$ 309$ 1,854$
19 7,500$ 1,500$ 9,000$

322,440$          

28,697$            

351,137$          

31,251$            

382,388$          

Network Printer (Laser printer)
ACP thin Manager Software (10 clients)

Control Room Thin Client and Monitor (3)

SCADA Software (2) FT Server, (7) clients, TS, WIN 911
PLC Software (RA RS Logix Professional Edition)

Historian Software (5,000 tags)
SCADA Servers w/OS Software (2)

MATERIAL TOTAL

MATERIAL TOTAL

MATERIAL TAXES @ 8.9%

Description

Server Rack, UPS with Bypass, Closet Connector Housing, FPP, Wire Management System
Firewall, Ethernet Switch, NAS

Remote Thin clients throughout the plant (3)

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
MATERIAL PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

Historian Server w/OS Software (1)

Workstations w/OS Software (2)

Miscellaneous, Software, Patch Cables, Connectors, Labels, etc.

Panel Mount Thin Clients (3) - OIT-HW, OIT-ABRW & OIT-SH

Local Network Panels (3) - NP-HW, NP-ST & NP-SH

Engineering Workstation w/OS Software (1)

Domain Server

Hardened Industrial Laptop Workstations (2)

Color Printer

MATERIALS SUBTOTAL

CONTINGENCY AND ESCALATION

TOTAL COMPENSATION

Total compensation for the Programming Services in addition to the Material Provided by the CONSULTANT is 
presented in the following table.

1,445,767$       

382,388$          

1,828,155$       

LABOR AND EXPENSES TOTAL (PROGRAMMING SERVICES)

MATERIAL TOTAL (MATERIAL FURNISHED BY CONSULTANT)

PROJECT TOTAL

CITY OF OAK HARBOR CLEAN WATER FACILITY
COMBINED PROGRAMMING SERVICES AND MATERIAL PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT

93



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  1 

References 

The City of Casa 
Grande, Arizona, Water 
Reclamation Facility 
Phase 3 Expansion, from 
6 to 12 mgd, included 
the addition of four new 
clarifiers, an additional 
anoxic/aerobic basin, 
new solids-handling 
equipment, new 
odor control, new 
sodium-hypochlorite 
generation, and related 
supporting facilities. 
This large-scale plant upgrade included the addition of 17 new PLCs (for a 
total of 26) as well as a completely new Wonderware system, including an 
enterprise-class Historian.

An existing video surveillance system was expanded by adding new 
cameras, connected via fiber-optic technology, and adding digital 
video-recording equipment to allow plant operations to greatly improve 
security around the large facility.

The lead PLC programming effort put forth by Carollo helped to avoid 
many of the traditional pitfalls encountered when multiple programmers 
from different vendors provide logic for the same project. The extensive 
experience of our senior programming staff quickly earned the respect of 
the various individuals involved and greatly increased the cooperation 
among the vendors to accommodate a common programming standard. 
Carollo provided many of the standard program modules for integration 
into the overall plant control system.

Casa Grande Water Reclamation Facility Phase 3 Expansion SCADA

City of Casa Grande, Arizona 

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Kevin Louis
Public Works Director
City of Casa Grande 
3181 North Lear Avenue 
Casa Grande, AZ 85222
520-421-8600
klouis@casagrandeaz.gov

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Allen-Bradley 
ControlLogix and CompactLogix

• PLC count: 26 CPUs

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
4,600+

• Communication networks 
and protocols used: Ethernet, 
ControlNet, Ethernet-IP, ControlNet 
(CIP)

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Dell server-class HW 
& SW + Wonderware’s InTouch 
SCADA-HMI SW

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell server-class HW 
& SW + Wonderware’s Enterprise 
Historian + Microsoft’s SQL RDBMS 
SW

This large scale plant upgrade included the addition of 
17 new (for a total of 26) PLCs as well as a completely 
new Wonderware system, including an enterprise-class 
Historian.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 25 months, Actual: 25 months
(9/06 – 10/08)

Contract Value: $2.7M
Programming: $1.2M
ESDC: $3.7M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: $48.1M, Actual:  $50.4M

Change Orders (number/amount): 
11 / $2.3M ($2.0M owner-directed)

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

94



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  2 

Bollman Water Treatment Plant DCS Replacement

Contra Costa Water District, Walnut Creek, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 
Owner

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Jacob Lesov
Instrumentation Engineer
Contra Costa Water District
2411 Bisso Lane,
Concord, CA 94524
925-688-8193
jlesov@ccwater.com

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Quantum 
Hot-Standby

• PLC count: 4

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
2,000+

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: Ethernet, Remote 
I/O, Modbus TCP, Remote I/O

• SCADA system hardware and soft-
ware: Dell Servers & Workstations/ 
Wonderware InTouch

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Servers/ 
Wonderware Historian

Carollo Engineers was the prime 
contractor for a $1.7 million 
turnkey (hardware and software) 
replacement of the distributed 
control system at the 75-mgd 
Bollman Water Treatment Plant 
for the Contra Costa Water 
District (CCWD) in Concord, 
California. The project included 
replacement of the plant’s 
obsolete, proprietary Bailey 
Infi-90 DCS with a modern, 
open-standards-based distributed 
PC/PLC system.

The new system uses four Modicon Quantum Unity hot-standby CPU 
pairs connected to I/O modules in eight area control cabinets. The PLC 
control network is configured in a redundant Ethernet/fiber ring. The 
remote I/O communications are also redundant.

The operator interface is provided by 12 thin-client terminals connected 
to redundant SCADA terminal servers running Wonderware InTouch for 
Terminal Services version 9.5.

Carollo provided hardware, software, programming, and complete systems 
integration services. Carollo was the prime contractor and directed the 
work of subcontractors for electrical installation, fiber-optic cable testing, 
panel fabrication, and design assistance.

The Bollman Plant is the main source of water for several communities 
and allowable shutdown times were very short, considering the magnitude 
of the project. Carollo worked closely with CCWD staff to develop 
a comprehensive cutover plan including fallback options to ensure 
continuous water deliveries. Carollo completed the project on time, within 
budget, and with minimal disruptions to staff and operations.

Carollo Engineers provided hardware, 
software, programming, and complete systems 
integration services.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 16 months, Actual: 16 months
(3/07 – 6/08 including programming)

Contract Value: $6.4M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: N/A (only DCS replacement) 
Actual: $1.7M

Change Orders (number/amount): 

4 / $150,000

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

95



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  3 

Contra Costa Middle River Intake Project

Contra Costa Water District, Contra Costa County, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 
Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Scott Weddle
Senior Engineer 
Contra Costa Water District
2411 Bisso Lane
Concord, CA 94524-2099
925-688-8318
sweddle@ccwater.com  

Contractor Information: 

ProVen Management
Mr. Bill Gilmartin
President
712 Sansome Street
San Francisco, CA 94111
415-990-4448
Bill@ProvenManagement.com 

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon M340

• PLC count: 2

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 261

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: Modbus TCP, 
Modbus RTU, WAN (Radio)

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Televent/Televent OASys 
DNA 7.5

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Server/Televent

The CCWD Middle 
River Intake Project 
protects CCWD’s 550,000 
customers from seasonal 
fluctuations and long-term 
degradation of water 
quality in the Delta by 
establishing an alternative 
intake at Victoria Canal 
in the central Delta. In 
addition to improving 
delivered water quality, 
the Middle River Intake 
Project enhances 
operational flexibility, 
improves health and aesthetic benefits to customers, provides fisheries 
protection via the change in timing/location of diversions, and protects 
delivered water quality during emergencies. The pump station includes five 
3,000-hp vertical turbine pumps to convey water to CCWD’s Los Vaqueros 
Reservoir or the Contra Costa Canal, automatic screen raking, a hydraulic 
surge suppression system, and a 69-kV substation.

The project will allow CCWD to consistently meet or exceed state and 
federal drinking water regulations and protect public health well into the 
future. It will also protect delivered-water quality during emergencies.

Key instrumentation and control elements:

 Redundant Modicon Quantum PLC system with segregated I/O for 
each pump.

 Data acquired from power metering systems, variable frequency drives 
(VFDs), motor starters, and intake screen cleaning system using 
Modbus TCP Ethernet and Modbus RTU communications.

 Water quality and process control instruments.

 Communications with SCADA at CCWD’s centralized control center 
over redundant radio networks.

 PLC and SCADA programming by Carollo Engineers.

Key electrical elements:

 69-kV substation with SF6 circuit breaker and 15-MVA transformer to 
step transmission voltage down to 4.16 kV to power the pump motors.

 4.16-kV switchgear and motor controls.

 Reduced-voltage solid-state motor starters for three 3,000-hp pump 
motors.

 VFDs for two 3,000-hp pump motors.

 Motor protection incorporating thermal overload modeling, current 
differential protection, and over-temperature protection that monitors 
six resistance-temperature detectors in the motor windings and two in 
the bearings.

Provided detailed control system design for the intake 
pump station including 5-3,000 hp pump, the PLC and 
SCADA control system, programming services, and 
engineering services during construction.

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 15 months, Actual: 15 Months
(09/06 – 11/07)

Contract Value:  $4.6M

Construction Cost: 
Bid Price: $32M, Final Amount: $33.56M

Change Orders (number/amount): 
162 / $1.56M (Field services for environ-
mental assessment)

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

96



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  4 

Carollo Engineers was 
retained to perform the 
City of Arlington’s John F. 
Kubala Water Treatment 
Plant Expansion I, 
which included the 
addition of six filters, two 
sedimentation basins, 
expanded recycle basin, 
and two finished-water 
high-service pumps (5 kV, 
800 hp on VFDs, and 
1,750 hp on RVSS), and a 
5-MG clearwell. 

The Expansion II project is the most recent in a series of major projects 
that Carollo Engineers has performed for the City of Arlington. The 
project involved hydraulic expansion from 65 mgd to 97.5 mgd through 
the addition of two sedimentation basins, eight granular media filters, 
chemical feed systems, a 1,000-hp high-service pump in the existing pump 
station, and ozone generation and contacting facilities.

The programming efforts included all high-service pumps (existing and 
new), which totalled 5,950 hp, with the largest pump being 1,750 hp.

Carollo performed the design and programming of the existing SCADA 
system expansion, which included redundant Allen-Bradley PLCs for the 
ozone facilities (programming by Ozonia), Modicon Premium PLCs for 
the rest of the plant, an Ethernet data highway and SCADA LAN, and an 
iFIX SCADA HMI system. The work included upgrading the iFIX software 
from version 3.5 to 5.0, a new Historian, and expanding the operator 
display system to include all of the new facilities. Carollo Engineers 
was also responsible for programming the new and expanded Modicon 
Premium PLCs, while two specialty subcontractors programmed the filter 
controls and ozone systems. The project included adding an enterprise 
Historian to the system, which collects data from all of the City’s water 
facilities into a central data repository for trending and analysis.

John F. Kubala Water Treatment Plant Expansions I and II

City of Arlington, Texas

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner 

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. David Smith
Water Treatment Manager/Maintenance
John Kubala Water Treatment Plant 
7001 U.S. Highway 287 
Arlington, TX 76017
817-478-5702
David.Smith@arlingtontx.gov

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Premium, 
Allen-Bradley PLC5, and Allen-
Bradley SLC500

• PLC count: 28

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
6,000+

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: ModBus TCP, DH+, 
Ethernet 

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Panel View and Dell 
Workstations/GE Profi cy iFIX

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Dell Server/
GE Profi cy Historian

Control system design and programming for 32.5-mgd 
WTF hydraulic expansion using Allen-Bradley and 
Modicon PLCs, iFIX SCADA and Historian software.Completion Time – Design:

Original and Actual: 16 months/ 
16 months (1/07 – 4/08)

Contract Value: $5.0M

Construction Cost:

Bid Price: $28.8M, Actual: Ongoing

Change Orders (number/amount): 
4 / $2.6M

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

97



V:\Client77_SEA\OakHarbor\Proposals\SCADAIntegration_0815\Jan2016_REV\INDD_Jan2016\References.indd
References  |  5 

Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant Miscellaneous Upgrades

City of Roseville, California

Design: Yes, Programming: Yes, ESDC: Yes

Contract Held with Owner or Contractor: 

Owner

Contact/Reference Information:

Mr. Ken Glotzbach
Wastewater Utility Manager
City of Roseville
2005 Hilltop Circle
Roseville, CA 95747
916-774-5770 
kglotzbach@roseville.ca.us

H
 I 

G
 H

 L
 I 

G
 H

 T
 S

• PLC models: Modicon Quantum

• PLC count: 12

• PLC input/output (I/O) count: 
3,500

• Communication networks and 
protocols used: EthernetIP over 
Fiber, Modbus Plus, Serial Modbus 
over Licensed Radio, Modbus TCP, 
Modbus Plus, Modbus RTU

• SCADA system hardware and 
software: Transdyn Controls 
DYNAC SCADA Software, 
Wonderware

• Enterprise historian hardware 
and software: Oracle Enterprise 
Edition

Carollo Engineers 
designed the Pleasant 
Grove Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, a new 
12-mgd treatment facility, 
for the City of Roseville. 
Carollo Engineers served 
as primary consultant for 
the design of SCADA 
and instrumentation 
systems at the Pleasant 
Grove plant and the 
replacement of an 
existing command center at the City’s Dry Creek WWTP.

Carollo Engineers designed a system that would meet the City’s need for 
“unattended operations” at the Pleasant Grove plant. The new plant is 
staffed on weekdays, but remains unstaffed on evenings and weekends. 
Control systems allow for communication between the Pleasant Grove 
plant and the Dry Creek plant. The Carollo Engineers team optimized 
process, SCADA, and communications system designs to allow for 
complete operation and monitoring of the Pleasant Grove plant from the 
Dry Creek plant.

The new SCADA system includes two command centers with a network 
of computers and control panels with Modicon Quantum PLCs, 
interconnected by a fiber-optic data highway, plus over 3,500 input/ output 
points of control. The Pleasant Grove plant includes an influent pump 
station, aerated grit basins, oxidation ditches, secondary clarifiers, a 
return activated sludge/waste activated sludge (RAS/ WAS) pump 
station, continuous backwash filters, a chlorine contact basin, and a 
solids-handling building. Automated valving, automated gates, and 
instrumentation are key project features that contribute to the plant’s ease 
of operation.

Carollo Engineers designed a system that would meet 
Roseville’s need for “unattended operations” at the 
Pleasant Grove facility. 

Completion Time – Design:

Original: 36 months, Actual: 36 months
(8/08 – 7/10 )

Contract Value: $2.9M

Construction Cost: 
Bid Price: $18.9M, Actual: $19.8M

Change Orders (number/amount): 

6 / $971,831

Claims Resulting in Litigation/Settlement 

Amount: None

98



V
:\C

lient77_SE
A

\O
akH

arbor\Proposals\SC
A

D
A

Integration_0815\Indd\Jan2016\R
eferences_11x17.indd

References  |  6 

Record Documentation

Follow-up Services

Corrective Services

Maintenance Services

MST
Manual Equipment Start-Up Test

SFT
Strategy Field Testing

O&M Manuals

Operator
Training

Maintenance
Training

Field Bus
Testing

PAL
PLC Panel and
Loop Testing

NAT
Network Equipment

Acceptance Test

CEET
Complete End-to-End Test

Field Device
Calibration

LAN Cable
Post Testing

Industrial
Network Testing

FAT
Factory Acceptance Testing

Integrated System All Hardware and Software
Testing Simulator

Hardwired Devices
Hardware Simulator
Field Bus Devices

PreFat - Assurance that PCIS is ready for full FAT
Panel Inspections  for completeness and workmanship
I/O Test verify I/O is properly wired to field terminals
System Configuration Test for all

Operator Stations
Servers
Development Stations
Peripherals

Control Logic Test of strategies with simulation of I/O

PLCs SCADA
Networks

Local
Operator

Interfaces 
Historian Alarms

PROGRAMMING VALIDATION, START-UP, AND COMMISSIONING PLAN

Hardware and Software
PLC-SCADA-NETWORKS

Review and Document
Existing Systems

Detailed Design Submittals
For Equipment and Software

Historian
Report System
Alarm System
Control System Block Diagram
Control System Network Diagram

Develop and Document Programming Standards
Screen Layout and Graphic Color Conventions
Control Action Standards
Software Architecture
General Control Functions
PLC Programming Standards

Control Strategies
Confirm
Refine
Expand

Coordination with Vendor Control Systems

Initial Set-Up of PLC/SCADA
Hardware and Software at
Programmer's Office

Configuration and Programming

Field Bus
Networks

P
O

S
T

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

IN
G

FI
E

LD
 T

E
S

TI
N

G
 A

N
D

 P
R

E
-C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
IN

G
C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

P
R

E
-C

O
N

S
TR

U
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
TI

V
IT

IE
S

Review and Document Existing Systems: Review the existing SCADA and control systems for Owner's 
other facilities and use the information collected to program the system expansion in a compatible manner, 
using similar programming standards. Visit the Owner's other facilities and become familiar with the system 
hardware and programming standards used, collect and review documentation on the existing system, 
including PLC code, SCADA software configuration files, block and wiring diagrams, and other O&M 
information available. 

Detailed Design Submittals: Prepare a detailed SCADA system design, based on the Contract Documents. 
Finalize computer system connections, history system expansion, report requirements, etc. Prepare a design 
submittal  including updated block diagram, software list, or other information required to define the final 
details of the complete control system.

Programming  Standards: Develop and document standard for use on the project to provide a consistent 
“look and feel” for operators and to make maintenance easier. The PLC programming and HMI and SCADA 
software configuration will follow these documented programming standards which shall include: Screen 
layout and graphic color conventions, Control action standards, Software architecture, General control 
functions, PLC programming standards. Screen layout and color standards define the way information is 
presented to operators on the SCADA screens. Control action standards define the way control actions are 
accomplished by the operator. Software architecture defines where in the system (PLC vs. servers vs. 
operator stations) various software functions are performed. General Control Functions describe typical 
control logic that will apply to all motors, valves, analog signals, etc. Meet with Owner to discuss options and 
preferences for graphic display standards, color conventions, and other programming standards and 
prepare a proposed graphic display and programming standards document for Owner acceptance.  

Control Strategies: The Contract Documents include specifications, P&IDs and Control Strategies  that 
describe the monitoring and control functions of the SCADA computer system and the operation of PLC 
logic. More detailed control strategies will be needed to confirm and refine the requirements for 
implementation of SCADA logic and functions prior to performing the programming.
 

Coordination with Vendor Control Systems: PLCs provided by vendors of packaged systems shall be 
integrated into the SCADA system. This requires coordination of programming work with the vendors. 
Vendors are responsible for all logic in their respective PLCs. They shall define the PLC registers in their 
PLCs that will allow remote starting and stopping of their systems, monitoring of data for display, alarming, 
event logging, trending, etc., and any other functions as required by the specification. Programmer shall 
coordinate its work with these equipment suppliers to provide proper control functionality between their 
equipment and the SCADA system. 

FAT: Before shipment to the project site, the complete PCIS system including all operator stations, servers, 
network equipment, printers, PCMs, PLCs, RTUs, LCPs, CCS, peripherals, communications equipment, and 
other SCADA equipment, shall be assembled, connected, and all software loaded for a full functional FAT of 
the integrated system. Perform tests to show that the integrated system hardware and software is fully 
operational. For systems that contain RTU’s or remote communications with other devices, the complete 
communications system must be factory tested, including actual interfacing with telephone company 
equipment and/or the actual radios used for radio based telemetry systems. Correct any deficiencies 
observed. Use hardware simulators connected to the I/O points within the SCADA System. All I/O shall be 
simulated and proper control and system operation shall be validated. 

Preliminary Factory Acceptance Test: Purpose of the Pre-FAT is to provide assurance that the control 
system is ready for the full FAT in terms of both stability and functionality. 

Panel Inspections: Inspect each control panel for completeness, workmanship, fit and finish, and 
compliance with the Contract Documents and the approved shop drawings.

I/O Test: Verify that I/O is properly wired to field terminals and is properly mapped into the PLC and the rest 
of the SCADA system, including all operator interface devices. 

System Configuration Test: Demonstrate and test the setup and configuration of all operator stations, 
servers, development stations, peripherals, utility software, virus protection, backup, optical drive burning, 
network monitoring, proper operation of all peripheral hardware, general SCADA functions, proper operation 
of log-on and other access security functions, historical data storage, trend, display, backup, report 
functions, automatic fail over of redundant equipment, alarm display and acknowledgement functions.

Control Logic Test: Verify that all software functions and logic work as specified, along with any hardwired 
logic or functions in the tested control panels.

PAL: The panels are shipped to the field and installed. After all instruments are installed and calibrated, and 
all field wires tested and terminated, conduct PAL. The purpose of the PAL test is to test the field wiring and 
instrumentation. The test is from the field devices, through any intermediate devices or control panels, to the 
PLC panel and into PLC registers. Each signal is tested from field device to PLC, and from PLC to final 
control element for PLC outputs. Programmer’s PLC code is not used in this test. 

NAT: After all fiber and other network cables are installed, conduct the NAT to demonstrate that all 
Contractor-provided cabling and hardware work as specified. 

CEET: Programmer shall load the PLC program for testing. PLCs are connected to the network at this time. 
The CEET is similar to the PAL, except now signals are tested through the PLC program, the network, and all 
the way to the operator’s SCADA graphic screens. Shall be performed by the Contractor and Programmer 
working together, with assistance from the OWNER or the inspection staff, as needed. The test shall  verify 
input signals and create output signals from, the SCADA HMI Station. 

MST: Test mechanical equipment and instruments with equipment operating under Local (Manual) control. 
These tests are performed without reliance on PLC program logic, unless the PLC logic is provided with 
packaged systems. Contractor shall also perform startup and commissioning tests of all mechanical 
equipment.

SFT: Performed by the Programmer and Contractor. Some OWNER assistance is generally required. 
Construction inspection staff witness the tests. The purpose is to verify the proper operation of all PLC 
control logic and its interaction with field equipment and devices. Feedback control loops are also tuned at 
this time.

O&M Manuals: Consisting of final Loop Descriptions and complete, annotated program listings for all 
control system programming and configuration. 

Operator Training: Training by the Programmer on the operation of the system and the use of the operator 
displays  for each of the software package developed by  the Programmer, utilizing the equipment and 
software applications that are to be supplied for the project.

Maintenance Training: Training by the Programmer on new and modified PLC and SCADA software 
programs and configurations. 

Record Documentation: Record documentation for programming work including PLC program listings, 
SCADA Software Configuration, Design drawings.

Follow-Up Services: Provide follow-up system support after the control system has been placed in 
operation. 

Corrective Services: For a period of one year after the start of beneficial use Programmer shall correct any 
errors or omissions in programming and other Programmer services, and repair or replace equipment 
provided that fails or is found to be defective during this period.

Maintenance Services: Provide maintenance services or modifications on hardware and software as 
directed by the Owner under a separate maintenance contract.

csu1210w1.ai

99



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 100



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 101



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 102



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 103



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 104



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 105



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 106



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 107



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 108



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 109



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 110



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 111



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 112



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 113



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 114



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 115



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 116



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 117



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 118



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 119



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 120



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 121



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 122



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 123



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 124



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 125



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 126



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 127



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 128



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 129



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 130



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 131



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 132



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 133



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 134



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 135



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 136



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 137



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 138



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 139



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 140



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 141



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 142



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 143



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 144



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 145



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 146



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 147



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 148



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 149



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 150



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 151



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 152



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 153



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 154



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 155



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 156



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 157



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 158



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 159



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 160



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 161



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 162



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 163



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 164



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 165



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 166



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 167



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 168



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 169



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 170



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 171



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 172



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 173



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 174



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 175



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 176



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 177



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 178



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 179



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 180



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 181



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 182



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 183



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 184



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 185



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 186



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 187



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 188



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 189



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 190



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 191



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 192



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 193



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 194



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 195



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 196



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 197



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 198



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 199



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 200



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 201



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 202



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 203



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 204



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 205



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 206



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 207



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 208



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 209



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 210



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 211



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 212



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 213



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 214



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 215



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 216



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 217



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 218



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 219



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 220



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 221



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 222



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 223



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 224



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 225



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 226



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 227



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 228



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 229



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 230



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 231



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 232



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 233



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 234



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 235



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 236



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 237



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 238



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 239



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 240



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 241



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 242



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 243



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 244



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 245



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 246



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 247



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 248



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 249



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 250



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 251



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 252



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 253



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 254



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 255



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 256



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 257



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 258



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 259



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 260



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 261



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 262



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 263



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 264



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 265



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 266



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 267



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 268



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 269



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 270



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 271



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 272



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 273



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 274



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 275



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 276



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 277



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 278



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 279



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 280



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 281



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 282



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 283



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 284



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 285



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 286



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 287



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 288



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 289



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 290



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 291



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 292



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 293



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 294



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 295



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 296



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 297



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 298



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 299



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 300



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 301



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 302



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 303



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 304



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 305



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 306



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 307



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 308



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 309



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 310



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 311



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 312



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 313



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 314



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 315



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 316



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 317



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 318



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 319



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 320



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 321



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 322



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 323



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 324



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 325



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 326



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 327



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 328



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 329



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 330



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 331



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 332



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 333



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 334



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 335



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 336



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 337



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 338



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 339



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 340



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 341



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 342



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 343



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 344



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 345



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 346



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 347



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 348



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 349



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 350



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 351



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 352



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 353



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 354



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 355



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 356



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 357



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 358



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 359



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 360



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 361



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 362



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 363



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 364



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 365



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 366



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 367



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 368



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 369



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 370



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 371



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 372



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 373



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 374



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 375



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 376



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 377



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 378



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 379



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 380



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 381



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 382



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 383



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 384



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 385



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 386



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 387



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 388



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 389



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 390



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 391



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 392



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 393



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 394



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 395



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 396



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 397



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 398



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 399



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 400



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 401



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 402



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 403



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 404



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 405



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 406



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 407



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 408



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 409



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 410



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 411



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 412



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 413



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 414



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 415



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 416



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 417



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 418



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 419



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 420



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 421



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 422



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 423



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 424



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 425



Consultant Agreement Amendment 
Number: 11 
 

Organization and Address: 
City of  Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, WA 98239 
 
Phone: (360) 279-4521 

Original Agreement Title:  Engineering Services 
for City of Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan 
Project Number: 8549A.00 (Amend 1-5) and 
8549A.10 (Amend 6-11) 

Execution Date 
09/06/2010 

Completion Date 
January 2016 

Project Title: Engineering, Facilities Plan and 
Preliminary Design  ENG 15-02 (previously 
ENG 13-05 

New Maximum Amount Payable 
$8,109,264 

                   
Description of Work:  This Amendment authorizes services to complete construction phase 
services associated with the City of Oak Harbor Outfall Replacement Project. 
 
The Local Agency of City of Oak Harbor desires to supplement the agreement entered into with 
Carollo Engineers, Inc.    and executed on    September 16, 2010 and identified as 
Preliminary Engineering and Facilities Plan.        
 
All provisions in the basic agreement remain in effect except as expressly modified by this 
supplement 
 
The changes to the agreement are described as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF WORK is hereby changed to read: 
The existing Scope of Services will remain open and will be completed for the authorized 
budget.  Please see the attached Scope of Services (Exhibit B) for additional phases of work.                           
 
TIME FOR BEGINNING AND COMPLETION IS AMENDED to read: No Change  
                          
 
PAYMENT shall be amended as follows:  
The maximum total contract value is increased from $7,907,388 to $8,109,264.  This maximum 
upper limit includes a Management Reserve as indicated in prior amendments.  Exhibit D-3 
summarizes the level of effort associated with Amendment No. 11 services.    
 
If you concur with this amendment and agree to the changes as stated above, please sign in the 
appropriate spaces and return to this office for final action. 
 
By: Carollo Engineers, Inc.    By:  Scott Dudley, Mayor   
                                                                                                 
  
             
Consultant Signature     Approving Authority Signature 
Brian R. Matson, Senior Vice President 
             
____________________________________   Date    
Consultant Signature 
Karl W. Hadler, Associate Vice President   

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 426



April 24, 2015  Page 1 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
OUTFALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Construction of a new marine outfall 
is needed to replace the existing outfall, which has ceased functioning.  
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Outfall Replacement Project (Project) 
based on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method, and as 
described herein. 
 
It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City’s Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project:  
 Project Manager (PM). 
 Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/FI) to assist with construction support and field 

engineering services.  
 Marine Outfall Design Engineer (ODE) to provide inspection of offshore marine activities, 

submittal review, and timely design interpretations and clarifications.  
 Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 

construction.  
 Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 

planning and outfall construction. 
 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM’s 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant’s level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 200 – Public Process Support – Construction  
Task 810 – Project Management 
Task 820 – Construction Meetings 
Task 830 – Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 – Office Services During Construction 
Task 850 – Baseline Sediment Sampling 
 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 427



April 24, 2015  Page 2 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

SCHEDULE 
 
This SOS is based on on-site staffing needs to support the construction duration of six (6) 
months, as currently estimated by the GC/CM Contractor.  
 

Milestone GC/CM Estimate of 
Construction Schedule 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) April 2015 

Substantial Completion October 2015 

Final Completion Clean Water Facility Start-Up 
 
TASK 200 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT – CONSTRUCTION  
 
Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach as outlined in 
subtasks: 
 
Subtask 210  – Construction Communications Plan 
 
Assist City in developing project strategy for construction communications, to be defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. Plan shall include a “Good Neighbor Plan” appendix, to be 
approved by City Council by resolution.  
 
Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Plan will be coordinated with City, GC/CM, and Third Party CM. 

2. One draft, with one round of reviews is assumed to finalize plan. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize plan is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 210 Deliverables: 

1. Construction Communications Plan with a “Good Neighbor Plan” Appendix, one (1) draft 
and one (1) final. 

 
Subtask 220 – Outfall Construction Launch Materials 
 
Support near-term activities to ready for launch of outfall construction in June 2015. This can 
include:  

 Up to three (3) print materials (e.g., bill stuffer, project one-pager, project newsletter); 
 One (1) display ad for media; 
 Review of and contribution toward Council briefing template for construction/project 

progress; and 
 Display/banner for construction fencing/way finding. 

 
Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 428



April 24, 2015  Page 3 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Limited time is assumed for ongoing Council template review and development (up to 
two (2) hours per month after creation for four (4) months). Any additional support for 
ongoing Council briefings review will require review of scope of work and budget.  

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize materials is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 220 Deliverables: 

1. Up to three (3) print materials for distribution. 

2. Up to one (1) display ad for media. 

3. One (1) display banner. 
 
Subtask 230 – Web Development Supporting Construction 
 
Ready website for construction, including refresh of Project Library page for ease of navigation 
and to easily capture history of project. Update website on a weekly basis during outfall 
construction.  
 
Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference.  

 
Subtask 230 Deliverables: 

1. Update project website library page. 

2. Weekly website updates during outfall construction. 
 
Subtask 240 – Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  
 
Support day-to-day activities and strategic planning associated with project construction. This 
will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total five (5)). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 25).  
 
Develop graphics and products that support project construction outreach (such as project base 
map, contact cards, comment cards, press releases, advertisements for project events), to be 
defined through development of Construction Communications Plan in Task 210.  
 
Subtask 240 Assumptions: 

1. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two (2) subconsultant staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed will be generated by other project 
staff, to be compiled and edited by Consultant for public consumption. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 429



April 24, 2015  Page 4 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask, 
to be further defined through completion of Task 210 (Construction Communications 
Plan). 

5. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

6. Event planning support for a project groundbreaking or other commemorative event is 
not included in this subtask. Subconsultant support for such an event would require 
additional conversation/definition of scope of work and roles/responsibilities. 

7. Consultant shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with this task.  
 
Subtask 240 Deliverables: 

1. Seven (7) additional project graphics/public communication products, on an as needed 
basis. 

 
TASK 810 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 
 

1. Management of Consultant’s team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/FI to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities.  

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month’s accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes.  

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant’s efforts. 

4. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 
 

Task 810 Assumptions: 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 
all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 

3. Project duration is approximately 24 weeks. 
 
Task 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 

2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 430



April 24, 2015  Page 5 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

TASK 820 – CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 
 
Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including:  
 
Subtask 821 – Construction Kick-off Conference 
 
Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project.  
 
Subtask 821 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 

2. Three (3) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, PE/FI, and ODE. 
 

Subtask 821 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 
 
Subtask 822 – Progress Meetings 
 
Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFI’s), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project.  
 
Subtask 822 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 
necessary materials and minutes. 

2. The Consultant’s PE/FI will attend Weekly Progress Meetings, and ODE will attend up to 
four (4) meetings. 
 

Subtask 822 Deliverables: 

1. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 
 
TASK 830 – FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide a Project PE/FI to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/FI will be responsible for the following tasks: 
 

1. Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 431



April 24, 2015  Page 6 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel: Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Coordinate with subconsultant performing 
forage fish sampling for Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). Provide supplemental 
inspection of general, civil, and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection 
reports by others, and prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize 
weekly and monthly inspection reports for the City. 

3. Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

4. Track Requests for Information (RFI): Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFIs and clarifications to the ODE 
when appropriate.  

5. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing to the ODE for review.  

6. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications by the ODE to the GC/CM.  

7. Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM’s monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City’s Project Manager.  

8. Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

9. Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City’s Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs.  

10. Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City’s Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

11. Photographic Documentation of Construction: Prepare periodic photographic records of 
site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports.  

12. Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested. Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved, and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 432



April 24, 2015  Page 7 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Task 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/FI will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/FI providing an average of six (6) hours per week (15% commitment) over the six 
(6) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is allocated to 
both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly progress 
meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

 
Task 830 Deliverables: 

1. Daily inspection logs and photographs. 

2. Monthly summary inspection reports. 

3. Review comments on Weekly Progress Meeting Minutes. 

4. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

5. Tracking logs for RFI’s, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

 
TASK 840 – OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide office engineering services during construction, including:  
 
Subtask 841 – Requests for Information (RFI) 
 
Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 841 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 20 RFI’s with an average effort of one (1) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses drafted by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services included 
time for detailed RFI review. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services and provide high quality submittals.  

 
Subtask 841 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 20 written RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 842 – Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 
 
Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 
 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 433



April 24, 2015  Page 8 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 842 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

2. Consultant’s effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 32 basic submittals at 0.5 hours of effort each to review 
and issue final responses by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services includes time for 
detailed submittal review. 

 
Subtask 842 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 32 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 843 – Review of Schedule of Value and Payment Applications 
 
Review contractor’s schedule of value, draft payment applications, and provide comment to City 
for information and/or action.  
 
Subtask 843 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to review the contractor’s schedule of value, and 
draft payment applications. Written responses summarizing the review shall be provided 
to the City’s PM. 

2. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review the schedule of values, and two (2) 
hours effort to review each draft payment application (up to 5 monthly payment 
applications, and 1 final payment application). 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. 

 
Subtask 843 Deliverables: 

1. Up to six (6) payment application responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 844 – Record Drawings 
 
Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM’s as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM’s drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 434



April 24, 2015  Page 9 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 844 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 
hours to produce record drawings from the information provided. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor’s work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

 
Subtask 844 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM.  

2. Outfall record drawings in Auto CAD format. 
 

Subtask 845 – Claim Review 
 
As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 
 
Subtask 845 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of one (1) claim with an average effort of eight (8) hours to 
review and respond. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 
 

Subtask 845 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 
 
TASK 850 – BASELINE SEDIMENT SAMPLING 
 
Following precedent from other aquatic lands easements for municipal WWTP outfalls, DNR will 
require baseline sediment sampling in the vicinity of the new diffuser. A sediment sampling and 
analysis plan including four (4) proposed sediment sampling stations will be submitted to DNR 
for approval. If any samples exceed any of the 47 SMS chemicals, then Consultant will 
communicate with DOE and DNR to determine whether bioassay analysis is required. 
 
Task 850 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on four (4) sediment samples, analysis of 47 sediment management 
standard chemicals, dioxin, furan, and conventional sediment variables. 

2. No sediment sample collection for bioassays (toxicity testing) is anticipated. Budget does 
not include any additional biological testing that may be required by DNR. 

 
Task 850 Deliverables: 

1. Sediment sampling and analysis plan will be submitted to DNR for approval. 

2. Laboratory report with sediment testing results. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 435



EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
CWF Outfall Replacement Project
Level of Effort Estimate 2.5%

April 24, 2015 Matson CAMP Lish Lish 1.9 $10.00
Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $76 $58 $40 $27

TASK 200 - Public Process - Construction
Subtask 210 - Construction Communication Plan $15,000 $15,000
Subtask 220 - Outfall Launch Materials $9,500 $9,500
Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction $10,000 $10,000
Subtask 240 - On-going Planning and Material Development $22,000 $22,000

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56,500 $56,500

TASK 810 - Project Management 16 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $5,428

Task 810 Subtotal 16 0 0 0 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $0 $0 $5,428

TASK 820 - Project Meetings
Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-Off Meeting 8 8 16 $1,072 $2,037 $238 $3,347 $3,347
Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 16 72 88 $5,392 $10,245 $1,271 $16,908 $16,908

Task 820 Subtotal 0 24 80 0 0 104 $6,464 $12,282 $1,509 $20,254 $0 $0 $20,254

TASK 830 - Field Services During Construction 60 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $60,162

Task 830 Subtotal 0 0 60 0 0 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $0 $60,162

TASK 840 - Office Services During Construction
Subtask 841 - Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS Project 
Manager PE/FI WP/ Admin. 

Support Carollo 
Hours

Design 
Manager

SR. CAD 
Designer

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total CostCME EI

Subtask 841  Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092
Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 16 16 32 $1,360 $2,584 $419 $4,363 $4,363
Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values / Payment Apps 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $730
Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 4 40 44 $1,832 $3,481 $573 $5,886 $5,886
Subtask 845 - Claim Review 4 4 4 12 $888 $1,687 $184 $2,760 $2,760

Task 840 Subtotal 4 4 48 40 32 128 $5,904 $11,218 $1,708 $18,830 $0 $0 $18,830

TASK 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $27,391

Task 850 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $0 $27,391

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 20 28 188 40 44 320 $17,580 $33,402 $4,475 $55,457 $76,609 $56,500 $188,566
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $6,655

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $3,830 $2,825 $6,655
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $201,876

Page 1
WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 436



April 24, 2015  Page 1 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

EXHIBIT B – SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR  
OUTFALL REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Oak Harbor (City) has completed Preliminary Design documents, and authorized 
Final Design for a new wastewater treatment plant (CWF). Construction of a new marine outfall 
is needed to replace the existing outfall, which has ceased functioning.  
 
Carollo Engineers (Consultant) will provide construction support and over sight, inspection and 
other engineering services during construction for the Outfall Replacement Project (Project) 
based on a General Contractor/Construction Manager (GC/CM) delivery method, and as 
described herein. 
 
It is assumed that the Owner will provide field staff including the City’s Project Manager and 
Field Inspectors, as well as independent third party construction management staff. Consultant 
will provide the following staff over the duration of the Project:  
 Project Manager (PM). 
 Project Engineer/Field Inspector (PE/FI) to assist with construction support and field 

engineering services.  
 Marine Outfall Design Engineer (ODE) to provide inspection of offshore marine activities, 

submittal review, and timely design interpretations and clarifications.  
 Office Administrator to provide contract documentation of engineering services during 

construction.  
 Public involvement professionals to facilitate outreach activities associated with project 

planning and outfall construction. 
 
LEVEL OF EFFORT 
 
The level of construction assistance required by Consultant is highly dependent on the GC/CM’s 
performance and the level of assistance provided by the City. The City and the Consultant will 
review job progress on a monthly basis in accordance with the construction schedule, to verify 
the effort to complete Project tasks as defined by this Scope of Services (SOS). With written 
authorization from the City, adjustments to the SOS and Consultant’s level of effort will be made 
as deemed appropriate by Consultant and the City Project Manager. The estimated level of 
effort and associated fee schedule for the services defined herein is presented in Exhibit D-3.  
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
This Scope of Services is divided into the following tasks: 
 
Task 200 – Public Process Support – Construction  
Task 810 – Project Management 
Task 820 – Construction Meetings 
Task 830 – Field Services During Construction 
Task 840 – Office Services During Construction 
Task 850 – Baseline Sediment Sampling 
 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 437



April 24, 2015  Page 2 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

SCHEDULE 
 
This SOS is based on on-site staffing needs to support the construction duration of six (6) 
months, as currently estimated by the GC/CM Contractor.  
 

Milestone GC/CM Estimate of 
Construction Schedule 

Notice to Proceed (NTP) April 2015 

Substantial Completion October 2015 

Final Completion Clean Water Facility Start-Up 
 
TASK 200 – PUBLIC PROCESS SUPPORT – CONSTRUCTION  
 
Provide additional public process support, materials development, and outreach as outlined in 
subtasks: 
 
Subtask 210  – Construction Communications Plan 
 
Assist City in developing project strategy for construction communications, to be defined in a 
Construction Communications Plan. Plan shall include a “Good Neighbor Plan” appendix, to be 
approved by City Council by resolution.  
 
Subtask 210 Assumptions: 

1. Plan will be coordinated with City, GC/CM, and Third Party CM. 

2. One draft, with one round of reviews is assumed to finalize plan. 

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize plan is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 210 Deliverables: 

1. Construction Communications Plan with a “Good Neighbor Plan” Appendix, one (1) draft 
and one (1) final. 

 
Subtask 220 – Outfall Construction Launch Materials 
 
Support near-term activities to ready for launch of outfall construction in June 2015. This can 
include:  

 Up to three (3) print materials (e.g., bill stuffer, project one-pager, project newsletter); 
 One (1) display ad for media; 
 Review of and contribution toward Council briefing template for construction/project 

progress; and 
 Display/banner for construction fencing/way finding. 

 
Subtask 220 Assumptions: 

1. The City shall pay directly for any costs associated with mass printing, postage, 
newspaper advertising, and display materials. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 438



April 24, 2015  Page 3 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Limited time is assumed for ongoing Council template review and development (up to 
two (2) hours per month after creation for four (4) months). Any additional support for 
ongoing Council briefings review will require review of scope of work and budget.  

3. Budget for meetings required to finalize materials is included in Subtask 240. 
 
Subtask 220 Deliverables: 

1. Up to three (3) print materials for distribution. 

2. Up to one (1) display ad for media. 

3. One (1) display banner. 
 
Subtask 230 – Web Development Supporting Construction 
 
Ready website for construction, including refresh of Project Library page for ease of navigation 
and to easily capture history of project. Update website on a weekly basis during outfall 
construction.  
 
Subtask 230 Assumptions: 

1. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Updates to web do not require in-person meetings/coordination and can be completed 
via email correspondence/teleconference.  

 
Subtask 230 Deliverables: 

1. Update project website library page. 

2. Weekly website updates during outfall construction. 
 
Subtask 240 – Ongoing Planning and Materials/Product Development Supporting 
Construction  
 
Support day-to-day activities and strategic planning associated with project construction. This 
will include monthly meetings in Oak Harbor (total five (5)). Activities include a weekly 
construction update call in order to compile weekly project email updates (up to 25).  
 
Develop graphics and products that support project construction outreach (such as project base 
map, contact cards, comment cards, press releases, advertisements for project events), to be 
defined through development of Construction Communications Plan in Task 210.  
 
Subtask 240 Assumptions: 

1. Monthly project meetings shall include up to two (2) subconsultant staff.  

2. Outfall construction duration assumed to be 24 weeks for weekly activities.  

3. Content for weekly construction updates is assumed will be generated by other project 
staff, to be compiled and edited by Consultant for public consumption. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 439



April 24, 2015  Page 4 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

4. Up to seven (7) additional public products/graphics materials assumed in this Subtask, 
to be further defined through completion of Task 210 (Construction Communications 
Plan). 

5. All written or web materials and communications products will be reviewed and approved 
by City staff. 

6. Event planning support for a project groundbreaking or other commemorative event is 
not included in this subtask. Subconsultant support for such an event would require 
additional conversation/definition of scope of work and roles/responsibilities. 

7. Consultant shall provide limited media strategy/coordination associated with this task.  
 
Subtask 240 Deliverables: 

1. Seven (7) additional project graphics/public communication products, on an as needed 
basis. 

 
TASK 810 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Provide project management services throughout the duration of the Project, including: 
 

1. Management of Consultant’s team to track schedule and budget, work elements 
accomplished, work items planned, labor, scope changes, and time and budget needed 
to complete this SOS. Coordinate with PE/FI to review budget status, and coordinate 
Project activities.  

2. Prepare monthly Project progress reports with each monthly invoice that identify the 
month’s accomplishments, anticipated tasks for the next month, and current or potential 
issues or changes.  

3. Manage, coordinate, and monitor subconsultant’s efforts. 

4. Issue a Declaration of Completion letter in accordance with Department of Ecology 
(DOE) requirements, following Final Acceptance. 
 

Task 810 Assumptions: 

1. The monthly progress report will contain a summary of cost to date and remaining 
budget for each major task. 

2. A schedule update will be included in the monthly progress report, and will account for 
all activities and tasks defined in the SOS. 

3. Project duration is approximately 24 weeks. 
 
Task 810 Deliverables: 

1. Monthly progress reports. 

2. Declaration of Completion letter by the Engineer of Record. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 440



April 24, 2015  Page 5 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

TASK 820 – CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS 
 
Provide design team support at construction meetings as required throughout the Project, 
including:  
 
Subtask 821 – Construction Kick-off Conference 
 
Participate in a Construction Kick-Off Conference attended by the City, Consultant, GC/CM, 
subcontractors, and other interested parties to confirm roles, responsibilities, and other pertinent 
items related to construction of the Project.  
 
Subtask 821 Assumptions: 

1. City and GC/CM will schedule and conduct the Construction Kick-Off Conference. 

2. Three (3) members of the Consultant staff will attend, including the PM, PE/FI, and ODE. 
 

Subtask 821 Deliverables: 

1. Meeting materials, as requested by the City. 

2. Comments on meeting minutes issued by the GC/CM or City. 
 
Subtask 822 – Progress Meetings 
 
Attend weekly progress meetings that focus on the status of submittal reviews, requests for 
information (RFI’s), change order requests, design clarifications, schedule issues, construction 
quality, and other issues relevant to the Project.  
 
Subtask 822 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will schedule, coordinate, and conduct Weekly Progress Meetings and prepare 
necessary materials and minutes. 

2. The Consultant’s PE/FI will attend Weekly Progress Meetings, and ODE will attend up to 
four (4) meetings. 
 

Subtask 822 Deliverables: 

1. Written recommendations in response to GC/CM action items, as required. 
 
TASK 830 – FIELD SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide a Project PE/FI to serve as the first point of contact in the field for the City and the 
GC/CM. The PE/FI will be responsible for the following tasks: 
 

1. Monitor Construction for Compliance with Contract Documents: Review and monitor 
construction work for compliance with the contract documents. Document and report any 
observed non-conformances and deficiencies to the City and GC/CM, and monitor the 
correction of these deficiencies. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 441



April 24, 2015  Page 6 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

2. Provide and Manage Subconsultant Field Inspection Personnel: Manage the activities of 
all subconsultant field inspection personnel. Coordinate with subconsultant performing 
forage fish sampling for Hydraulic Project Approval (HPA). Provide supplemental 
inspection of general, civil, and mechanical activities. Collect and log field inspection 
reports by others, and prepare inspection reports when inspections occur. Summarize 
weekly and monthly inspection reports for the City. 

3. Attend and Participate in Construction Meetings: Attend and participate in construction 
meetings, including weekly progress meetings. 

4. Track Requests for Information (RFI): Coordinate and manage the RFI process 
according to the contract documents. Screen all RFIs and determine their validity before 
responding or distributing to subconsultant. Forward RFIs and clarifications to the ODE 
when appropriate.  

5. Track Shop Drawing Submittals: Coordinate and manage the shop drawing and 
submittal review process. Screen the submittals and determine their completeness 
before distributing to the ODE for review.  

6. Prepare Field Memos and Clarifications: Manage and issue field memos and 
clarifications of drawings and specifications by the ODE to the GC/CM.  

7. Review Quantities in the Monthly Progress Payment Requests: Compare requested 
quantities in the GC/CM’s monthly progress payment requests to the quantities 
completed, as requested by the City’s Project Manager.  

8. Review Construction Schedule: Review and provide comments to the City regarding the 
baseline schedule and monthly updates consistent with the contract document 
requirements. The review will focus on key elements such as logic, duration of activities, 
duration of startup and testing, and construction sequencing constraints and milestones. 

9. Review Monthly Construction Progress Reports: Review monthly construction progress 
reports prepared by the GC/CM and provide comments to the City’s Project Manager. It 
is anticipated that reports will include compliance with progress schedule, description of 
work completed, Project issues, potential claims status, and Project photographs.  

10. Review Change Order Requests: Review and provide comments to the City on change 
order requests based on changes in scope and conditions. Assist the City’s Project 
Manager in developing change order value. Incorporate approved change orders into the 
contract. 

11. Photographic Documentation of Construction: Prepare periodic photographic records of 
site construction, in conjunction with inspection reports.  

12. Conduct Final Inspection: Schedule and conduct a final inspection of the completed 
facilities and issue punch lists of uncompleted items where necessary. Assist the City in 
negotiation of unsettled changes or disputes associated with these inspections, as 
requested. Advise City when final punch list items have been completed or resolved, and 
recommend final acceptance by the City. 

 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 442



April 24, 2015  Page 7 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Task 830 Assumptions: 

1. PE/FI will be on-site as needed throughout the duration of the Project. Budget is based 
on PE/FI providing an average of six (6) hours per week (15% commitment) over the six 
(6) month Project duration, between NTP and final acceptance. This time is allocated to 
both on-site observation of work under this task, and attendance of weekly progress 
meetings. 

2. Special testing and inspection associated with permitting requirements will be 
scheduled, provided for, and managed by the GC/CM and/or the City. 

 
Task 830 Deliverables: 

1. Daily inspection logs and photographs. 

2. Monthly summary inspection reports. 

3. Review comments on Weekly Progress Meeting Minutes. 

4. Review comments on Monthly Construction Progress Reports. 

5. Tracking logs for RFI’s, submittals, field memos, design clarifications, change order 
requests, etc. 

 
TASK 840 – OFFICE SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 
 
Provide office engineering services during construction, including:  
 
Subtask 841 – Requests for Information (RFI) 
 
Provide interpretation, review, and responses to RFIs and incorporate decisions made during 
design into RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 841 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to research, respond, and document each RFI in 
accordance with the contract documents. 

2. Budget is based on 20 RFI’s with an average effort of one (1) hour per each to review 
and issue final responses drafted by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services included 
time for detailed RFI review. 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively coordinate these services and provide high quality submittals.  

 
Subtask 841 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 20 written RFI responses. 
 
Subtask 842 – Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 
 
Review shop drawing and submittals (test certifications and other specified reports) and provide 
written responses, including submittals and/or associated re-submittals as described below. 
 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 443



April 24, 2015  Page 8 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 842 Assumptions: 

1. GC/CM will implement quality control measures to screen each submittal prior to 
forwarding to Engineer for action. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the 
assumption that the GC/CM will proactively coordinate these services and provide high 
quality submittals. 

2. Consultant’s effort includes services to review and respond to each shop drawing, and to 
document responses in accordance with the contract documents. 

3. Budget is based on a total of 32 basic submittals at 0.5 hours of effort each to review 
and issue final responses by the ODE. The ODE’s scope of services includes time for 
detailed submittal review. 

 
Subtask 842 Deliverables: 

1. Up to 32 submittal responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 843 – Review of Schedule of Value and Payment Applications 
 
Review contractor’s schedule of value, draft payment applications, and provide comment to City 
for information and/or action.  
 
Subtask 843 Assumptions: 

1. Consultant’s effort includes services to review the contractor’s schedule of value, and 
draft payment applications. Written responses summarizing the review shall be provided 
to the City’s PM. 

2. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review the schedule of values, and two (2) 
hours effort to review each draft payment application (up to 5 monthly payment 
applications, and 1 final payment application). 

3. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review the schedule of value, draft payment applications, and recommend 
appropriate modifications to their contractor, prior to the Consultants review. 

 
Subtask 843 Deliverables: 

1. Up to six (6) payment application responses in accordance with the contract documents. 
 
Subtask 844 – Record Drawings 
 
Upon completion of project, Consultant will review GC/CM’s as-built drawings, produce record 
drawings in Auto CAD format from the information provided, and will inform Owner of any known 
inaccuracies and/or omissions on the GC/CM’s drawings. The Consultant will not be responsible 
for incorrect information that has been provided by others, or omitted information that should 
have been provided by others that was previously unknown to the Consultant. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 444



April 24, 2015  Page 9 of 9 
pw://Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Oak Harbor/8549A10/Project Management/Contracts/Outfall_ESDC_Scope.doc 

Subtask 844 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of four (4) hours to review GC/CM as-built drawings, and 40 
hours to produce record drawings from the information provided. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review their contractor’s work, and incorporate as-built information as work 
progresses. 

 
Subtask 844 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments following review of as-built drawings provided by GC/CM.  

2. Outfall record drawings in Auto CAD format. 
 

Subtask 845 – Claim Review 
 
As directed by the City, evaluate claims due to changed conditions, project delays, or design 
errors/omissions. Assist in evaluating the claimed impact by the Contractor. Prepare written 
responses to the claims merit, and submit written documentation to the City for action. 
 
Subtask 845 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on a total of one (1) claim with an average effort of eight (8) hours to 
review and respond. 

2. The overall level of effort is reduced based on the assumption that the GC/CM will 
proactively review and dismiss any unsubstantiated claims by their subcontractor(s). 
 

Subtask 845 Deliverables: 

1. Written review comments and recommendations associated with the claim. 
 
TASK 850 – BASELINE SEDIMENT SAMPLING 
 
Following precedent from other aquatic lands easements for municipal WWTP outfalls, DNR will 
require baseline sediment sampling in the vicinity of the new diffuser. A sediment sampling and 
analysis plan including four (4) proposed sediment sampling stations will be submitted to DNR 
for approval. If any samples exceed any of the 47 SMS chemicals, then Consultant will 
communicate with DOE and DNR to determine whether bioassay analysis is required. 
 
Task 850 Assumptions: 

1. Budget is based on four (4) sediment samples, analysis of 47 sediment management 
standard chemicals, dioxin, furan, and conventional sediment variables. 

2. No sediment sample collection for bioassays (toxicity testing) is anticipated. Budget does 
not include any additional biological testing that may be required by DNR. 

 
Task 850 Deliverables: 

1. Sediment sampling and analysis plan will be submitted to DNR for approval. 

2. Laboratory report with sediment testing results. 

WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 445



EXHIBIT D-3

City of Oak Harbor
CWF Outfall Replacement Project
Level of Effort Estimate 2.5%

April 24, 2015 Matson CAMP Lish Lish 1.9 $10.00
Subconsultant Cost

Direct Labor (DL) Rates $88 $76 $58 $40 $27

TASK 200 - Public Process - Construction
Subtask 210 - Construction Communication Plan $15,000 $15,000
Subtask 220 - Outfall Launch Materials $9,500 $9,500
Subtask 230 - Web Development Supporting Construction $10,000 $10,000
Subtask 240 - On-going Planning and Material Development $22,000 $22,000

Task 200 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $56,500 $56,500

TASK 810 - Project Management 16 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $5,428

Task 810 Subtotal 16 0 0 0 12 28 $1,732 $3,291 $406 $5,428 $0 $0 $5,428

TASK 820 - Project Meetings
Subtask 821 - Construction Kick-Off Meeting 8 8 16 $1,072 $2,037 $238 $3,347 $3,347
Subtask 822 - Progress Meetings 16 72 88 $5,392 $10,245 $1,271 $16,908 $16,908

Task 820 Subtotal 0 24 80 0 0 104 $6,464 $12,282 $1,509 $20,254 $0 $0 $20,254

TASK 830 - Field Services During Construction 60 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $60,162

Task 830 Subtotal 0 0 60 0 0 60 $3,480 $6,612 $852 $10,944 $49,218 $0 $60,162

TASK 840 - Office Services During Construction
Subtask 841 - Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092

Carollo DL 
Cost

WORK TASKS Project 
Manager PE/FI WP/ Admin. 

Support Carollo 
Hours

Design 
Manager

SR. CAD 
Designer

Carollo 
Indirect 

Cost

Carollo 
Expenses

Subtotal 
Carollo 

Cost
Total CostCME EI

Subtask 841  Request for Information 20 16 36 $1,592 $3,025 $475 $5,092 $5,092
Subtask 842 - Review of Shop Drawings and Submittals 16 16 32 $1,360 $2,584 $419 $4,363 $4,363
Subtask 843 - Review of Schedule of Values / Payment Apps 4 4 $232 $441 $57 $730 $730
Subtask 844 - Record Drawings 4 40 44 $1,832 $3,481 $573 $5,886 $5,886
Subtask 845 - Claim Review 4 4 4 12 $888 $1,687 $184 $2,760 $2,760

Task 840 Subtotal 4 4 48 40 32 128 $5,904 $11,218 $1,708 $18,830 $0 $0 $18,830

TASK 850 - Baseline Sediment Sampling $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $27,391

Task 850 Subtotal 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $27,391 $0 $27,391

SUBTOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET 20 28 188 40 44 320 $17,580 $33,402 $4,475 $55,457 $76,609 $56,500 $188,566
CAROLLO FEE (12% of Carollo Cost) $6,655

SUBCONSULTANT MARKUP (5% of Subconsultant Cost) $3,830 $2,825 $6,655
TOTAL AUTHORIZED BUDGET $201,876

Page 1
WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 446



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 447



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 448



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 449



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 450



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 451



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 452



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 453



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 454



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 455



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 456



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 457



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 458



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 459



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 460



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 461



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 462



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 463



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 464



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 465



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 466



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 467



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 468



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 469



WWTP - Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment B 470



Carollo Contract Summary
City of Oak Harbor
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Contract Purpose Authorized by
Approval 

Date

 Facilities Plan 
Authorized 

Amount

 Preliminary 
Design 

Authorized 
Amount

 Final Design 
Authorized 

Amount
SCADA 

Services

Authorized 
Management 

Reserve

Available 
Management 

Reserve

Base + 
Management 

Reserve
Original Contract Facilities Plan City Council 8/4/10 1,039,561$     50,000$           50,000$           1,089,561$     
Amendment 1 Increase No. of Alternatives Staff 7/6/11 14,683$           35,317$           
Amendment 2 Additional Field Investigation Staff 5/8/12 3,404$             31,913$           
Amendment 3 Added Charrette Process Staff 8/1/12 18,084$           13,829$           
Amendment 4 Complete Eel Grass Survey Staff 10/9/12 9,896$             3,933$             
Amendment 5 Geotech, Survey, Freund City Council 10/16/12 121,021$        28,679$           32,612$           149,700$        
Email Geotech Staff 3/13/13 28,679$           3,933$             
Amendment 6 Preliminary Design, Outfall City Council 3/19/13 1,982,065$     99,103$           103,036$        2,081,168$     
Amendment 7 ESA to Complete SEPA Staff 5/29/13 9,327$             93,709$           
Amendment 8 GC/CM Assist, Pump Test, Camera Staff 3/17/14 22,260$           47,107$           24,342$           
Amendment 9 Facilities Re-Design, GC/CM Coord. Staff 9/23/14 20,804$           3,538$             
Amendment 10 Final Design City Council 12/2/14 4,368,533$     218,427$        221,965$        4,586,960$     
Amendment 11 Outfall Engineering Services City Council 5/5/15 201,876$        221,965$        201,876$        

Amendment 12

Deep Excavation Eng. Services
Concept B & Parking Design
Park Planning and Outreach City Council 10/20/15 1,496,877$     221,965$        1,496,877$     

Amendment 13 SCADA Services City Council pending 1,828,155$     221,965$        1,828,155$     
Total 1,266,915$     2,049,976$     6,067,286$     1,828,155$     396,208$        11,434,296$   

February 2, 2016

WWTP = Carollo Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services - Attachment C 471


	Agenda for February 2, 2016 Regular Council Meeting
	2.b.i Oath of Police Officer for Michael Brown
	2.b.ii Employee Service Recognition - Arnold Peterschmidt - 10 Years of Service
	C/A 4.a Minutes of the Regular Meeting held on January 19, 2016, and Workshop on January 20, 2016
	 1/19/2016 Minutes
	 1/20/2016 Minutes

	C/A 4.b Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)
	 Voucher Listing (3)

	C/A 4.c Resolution No. 16-06: Island Transportation Planning Organization (ITPO)
	 Interlocal Agreement
	 Resolution No. 16-06

	C/A 4.d Department of Corrections Jail Contract for Services K9413(3)
	 Department of Corrections Cover Letter (Incorrect Name for Mayor) 
	 Department of Corrections Prisoner Contract 2016-2018

	5.a.i Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
	 2/02/2016 Report

	5.a.ii 2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by Race Director - Elks Lodge
	8.a Clean Water Facility - Carollo Engineers - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13 for SCADA Services
	 Attachment A - Consultant Agreement Amendment No. 13
	 Attachment B - Consultant Original PSA and Previous Amendments
	 Attachment C - Carollo Contract Summary




